UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE

ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2014
or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 001-36522

/ —
L\

INVESTAR
Investar Holding Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Louisiana 27-1560715
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

7244 Perkins Road, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70808

(Address of principal executive offices, includingip code)

(225) 227-2222

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstebrter period that the registrant was requirefilécsuch reports), and (2) has been sul
to such filing requirements for the past 90 day¥es No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdwnitted electronically and posted on its corpoléieb site, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaiule 405 of Regulation $8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grionths (c
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files). Y&d No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer, or a smaller repori
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdiled,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportingpmpany” in Rule 1212- of the Exchan
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file J Accelerated file| O
Non-accelerated file (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExgje Act). Yes[ No

The number of shares outstanding of each of theeissclasses of common stock, as of the latest pedatdadate, is as follows: Common st
$1.00 par value, 7,254,244 shares outstanding @stober 29, 2014.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Special Note Regarding Forwak@oking Statements

Part I. Financial Information

Iltem 1.

Iltem 2.
Iltem 3.
Iltem 4.

Financial Statements (Unaudite

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 38,8l December 31, 20.

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the thneenine months ended September 30, 2014 and

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incom#éothree and nine months ended September 30,41201°

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockhc Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the mioeths ended September 30, 2014 and :

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem

Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatior

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaiRisk

Controls and Procedur:

Part Il. Other Informatiol

Item 1A.
Iltem 2.
Iltem 6.

Signatures

Risk Factors

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Uderofeed:

Exhibits

Exhibit Index

48
48
49
50
51




SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

When included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10eQin other documents that Investar Holding Coaion (the “Company’files with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) or ateshents made by or on behalf of the Company, wiikds'may,” “should,” “could,”
“predict,” “potential,” “believe,” “think,” “will likely result,” “expect,” “continue,” “will,” “antidpate,” “seek,” “estimate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“projection,” “would,” “outlook” and similar expresons or the negative version of those words atended to identify forwardboking
statements as defined by the Private Securitiegdtibn Reform Act of 1995. These forwdabking statements involve a variety of risks
uncertainties that could cause actual results fferdinaterially from those described therein. Then(pany’s forwardeoking statements &
based on assumptions and estimates that managbgi@vies to be reasonable in light of the inforoathvailable at the time such statem
are made. However, many of the matters addressélelsg statements are inherently uncertain andldmibffected by many factors bey
management’s control. Factors that could have a&maheffect on the Compars/business, financial condition, results of operetiand futut
growth prospects can be found in the Risk Factectian of the Registration Statement on Forrh that the Company originally filed with 1
SEC on May 16, 2014 (and subsequently amendedpartdl, Item 1A. — Risk Factors, of this QuarteRgport on Form 1@. Additional risl
factors may also be described in reports that tragany files from time to time with the SEC.

" ow n o, " ow " ow "o, n ow ” o ”ow ” ow

Because forwardboking statements are inherently subject to riské uncertainties, some of which cannot be predlictequantified, yo
should not rely on any forwarddoking statement as a prediction of future eveWts.expressly disclaim any obligation or undertgkio updat
our forward-looking statements, and we do not idtemrelease publicly any updates or changes ine@pectations concerning the forward
looking statements or any changes in events, donditor circumstances upon which any forwbroking statement may be based, exce
required by law.




PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 6,44¢ $ 5,964
Interest bearing balances due from other bi 12,27¢ 21,73¢
Federal funds sol 500 500
Cash and cash equivalents 19,227 28,20:
Available for sale securities at fair value (an&et cost
of $77,765 and $56,733, respective 77,83¢ 56,17:
Held to maturity securities at amortized cost (eated
fair value of $14,661 and $5,986, respectiv 14,97: 6,57¢
Loans held for sal 53,30¢ 5,02¢
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $4,328 a
$3,380, respective 577,11 500,71¢
Other equity securitie 3,184 2,02C
Bank premises and equipment, net of accumulated
depreciation of $4,403 and $2,679, respecti 27,85( 24,68(
Real estate owned, n 2,96¢€ 3,51¢
Accrued interest receivab 1,977 1,83t
Prepaid FDIC/OFI assessmt 134 -
Deferred tax asst 1,117 1,20¢
Goodwill 2,684 2,684
Other asset 2,227 2,30¢
Total assets $ 784,597 $ 634,94¢
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Noninteres-bearing $ 72,61¢ $ 72,79¢
Interes-bearing 548,99: 459,81
Total deposits 621,61- 532,60¢
Advances from Federal Home Loan Be 38,42¢ 30,81¢
Repurchase agreeme! 12,051 10,20z
Note payable 3,60¢ 3,60¢
Accrued interest payab 282 285
Accrued taxes and other liabiliti 6,452 1,94z
Total liabilities 682,43: 579,46:
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, $1.00 par value per share; 40,000,000
shares authorized; 7,253,774 and 3,945,114 share
issued and outstanding, respecti 7,255 3,945
Treasury stocl (22) -
Surplus 85,017 45,281
Retained earning 9,852 6,60¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 63 (350)
Total stockholders' equity 102,16¢ 55,48:
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 784,597 $ 634,94¢




INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

INTEREST INCOME
Interest and fees on loa
Interest on investment securitit
Taxable interest incorr
Exempt from federal income tax
Other interest incom
Total interest incom

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposi
Interest on borrowing

Total interest expens
Net interest incom

Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan los

NONINTEREST INCOME

Service charges on deposit accol
Gain on sale of investment securities,
Gain on sale of real estate owned,
Gain on sale of loans, n
Gain on sale of fixed assets, |
Bargain purchase ga
Fee income on mortgage loans held for sale
Other operating incorr

Total noninterest incom

Income before noninterest expel

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy expense and equipment expens:
Bank shares ta
FDIC and OFI assessmel
Legal fees
Data processin
Advertising
Stationery and supplie
Software amortization and exper
Professional fee
Telephone expens
Business entertainme
Other operating expens
Total noninterest expen
Income before income tax exper
Income tax expens
Net income

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per she
Diluted earnings per sha
Cash dividends declared per common sl

(Unaudited)
Three months endec Nine months endec
September 30 September 30
2014 2013 2014 2013

$ 7,801 $ 6,014 $ 21,59t $ 15,331
244 106 623 247
123 100 294 267
14 11 34 22
8,182 6,231 22,54¢ 15,867
1,084 862 3,137 2,284
98 70 292 174
1,182 932 3,42¢ 2,45¢
7,00C 5,29¢ 19,117 13,40¢
505 108 1,19¢ 340
6,49t 5,191 17,91¢ 13,06¢
85 67 221 153
63 35 228 344
245 6 238 97
713 86 1,43z 138
3 2 3 2
- - - 906
518 593 1,61¢ 2,32t
332 234 794 420
1,95¢ 1,023 4 53t 4,38t
8,454 6,214 22,45¢ 17,45
3,773 3,26¢ 10,73t 8,37¢
628 570 1,79C 1,38C
83 68 243 169
131 101 364 245
41 14 89 106
354 239 940 641
94 83 241 231
39 59 131 160
153 118 381 280
135 33 345 199
43 43 135 102
38 22 103 55
801 600 1,932 1,45¢
6,31% 5,21¢ 17,42¢ 13,40¢
2,141 996 5,02t 4,04¢
699 322 1,637 1,05¢
$ 144z $ 674 $ 3,386 $ 2,99(
$ 020 $ 017 $ 0.68 $ 0.84
$ 020 $ 0.1€ $ 0.65 $ 0.78
$ 001 $ 001 $ 0.03 $ 0.04




INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

(Unaudited)
Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income $ 144z $ 674 $ 3,38¢ $ 2,99
Other comprehensive (loss) incor
Unrealized (loss) gains on investment securi
Reclassification of realized gains, net of tax 223$$12,
$78 and $117, respective (42) (23) (151) (227)
Unrealized (loss) gains, available for sale, net&fof
($23), ($6), $194 and ($211), respectiy (67) (16) 571 (620)
Unrealized (loss) gains, transfer from availables@le to
held to maturity, net of tax of $0, $0, ($hd58,
respectivel (1) (1) (2) 22
Fair value of derivative instrumen
Change in fair value of interest rate swap deseghat a
cash flow hedg (5) - (5) -
Total other comprehensive (loss) inco (115) (40) 413 (825)
Total comprehensive incon $ 1,327 $ 634 $ 3,801 $ 2,16t




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

Balance, December 31, 20
Proceeds from sale of sto

INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)

EQUITY

Accumulated

Common stock issued for acquisition, 320,774

share!
Stock issuance co
Dividends declare- $0.05 per shar
Stock based compensati
Net income
Other comprehensive loss, |
Balance, December 31, 20
Shares issued in IP
Warrants exercise
Surrendered shar
Dividends declare- $0.03 per shar
Stock based compensati
Net income
Other comprehensive income, |

Balance, September 30, 2014 (Unaudi

Other Total
Common Treasury Retained Comprehensive  Stockholders'
Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Income (Loss) Equity
$ 320€ $ - $ 36,060 $ 3,62C $ 665 $ 43,55
382 - 4,957 - - 5,33¢
320 - 4,17C - - 4,49(C
- - (23) - - (23)
5 } 5 (179) } (179)
33 - 117 - - 150
- - - 3,16¢ - 3,16¢
- - - - (1,015) (1,015)
$ 394 % - $ 45281 $ 6,60¢ $ (350) $ 55,48
3,28¢ - 39,39¢ - - 42,68:
16 - 194 - - 210
- (22) - - - (22)
i - - (145) - (145)
11 - 144 - - 155
- - - 3,38¢ - 3,38¢
- - - - 413 413
$ 7,258 $ (22) $ 85017 $ 9,85z $ 63 $ 102,16¢




INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in thousands, except share data)
(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activitie

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse

Amortization of purchase accounting adjustme
Writedowns of other real estate owr
Depreciation and amortizatic

Net amortization of securitie

Bargain purchase ga

Gain on sale of securiti¢

Loans held for sale

Originations

Proceeds from sal¢

Fee income on mortgage loans held for sale
Gain on sale of loar

Gain on sale of other real estate ow

Loss (gain) on sale of fixed ass

FHLB stock dividenc

Stocl-based compensatic

Net change in

Accrued interest receivah

Prepaid OFI/FDIC assessme

Deferred taxe

Other asset

Accrued interest payab

Accrued taxes and other liabiliti

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activ

Cash flows from investing activitie

Proceeds from sales of investment securities alaifar sale

Funds invested in securities available for :

Funds invested in securities held to matu

Proceeds from principal paydowns and maturitieswdstment securities available for s
Proceeds from principal paydowns and maturitieswdstment securities held to matui
Proceeds from sale of loa

Proceeds from redemption of other equity secur

Purchase of other equity securit

Net increase in loar

Proceeds from sales of real estate ow

Proceeds from sales premises, equipment and sef

Purchases of premises, equipment and soft

Cash received in acquisitic

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie

Net increase in customer depo:

Net increase in repurchase agreem

Net increase (decrease) in s-term FHLB advance
Proceeds from lor-term FHLB advance
Repayment of lor-term FHLB advance

Cash dividends paid on common stt

Proceeds from issuance of common stock in initidllip offering
Proceeds from sales of common st

Proceeds from stock warrants exerci

Stock issuance co

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

For the nine months ended

September 30,

2014 2013
338 $ 2,99(
1,19¢ 340
(251) (497)
208 18
942 622
803 620
z (906)
(229) (344)
(147,402) (80,727)
100,74+ 94,20¢
(1,618) (2,325)
(1,439 (139)
(239) (97)
(3) 2
(6) (3)
155 109
(142) (67)
(134) 197
(124) 185
50 (76)

3) 18
4,482 201
(39,619 14,32¢
23,08¢ 8,60€
(51,459 (30,005)
(8,54¢) -
6,767 5,96(
142 34
105,241 37,48:
1,37€ 828
(2,534) (839
(181,937 (120,26()
1,28¢ 1,517

3 2
(4,112) (5,482)
- 9,29z
(110,687) (92,864)
89,11¢ 80,30z
1,84¢ 6,88¢
4,104 (10,365)
6,00C 12,20¢
(2,49¢6) (6,375
(145) (132)
42,687 -
2 5,341

210 -
= (26)
141,31¢ 87,82¢
(8,976) 9,28¢
28,20: 4,641
19227 $ 13,92¢




INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finandialements of Investar Holding Corporation (the “Quamy”) have been prepared
accordance with United States generally accepteduating principles (“GAAP”¥or interim financial information and the instrumtis to Forr
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation - Accordingly, they do not include information fmotnotes necessary for a complete presentati
financial position, results of operations, and cfials in conformity with generally accepted accting principles. However, in the opinion
management, all adjustments (consisting of norew@linring adjustments) necessary for a fair prefientaf the financial statements have k
included. The results of operations for the thne¢ aine month periods ended September 30, 2014direecessarily indicative of the res
that may be expected for the entire fiscal yeaesEhstatements should be read in conjunction Ww@lCompanys audited financial stateme
for the year ended December 31, 2013, includingnibtes thereto, which were included as part ofGbenpanys Registration Statement
Form S-1, originally filed with the Securities aBdchange Commission on May 16, 2014, and subseguentnded.

Nature of Operations

Investar Holding Corporation, headquartered in Ba®ouge, Louisiana, provides full banking servia@s;luding trust services, through
wholly-owned banking subsidiary, Investar Bank (tBank”), a Louisiana-chartered bank. The Compargrimary market is South Louisia
The Company currently operates 11 full service bambkffices located throughout its market and h@8 @mployees at September 30, 2014.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of the Company and its whollyned subsidiary, the Bank. All significi
intercompany accounts and transactions have baamated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymwith GAAP requires management to make estimate$ assumptions that affect
reported amounts of assets and liabilities anddtbelosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements as we
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdbamrreporting period. Actual results could diffierm those estimates, and such differe
could be material. Material estimates that are etifale to a significant change in the near terenthe allowance for loan losses, the fair v
of financial instruments and the determination thfeo-than-temporary impairments of securities.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to th8 #i@ancial statements to be consistent with thk42fresentation.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Companys loan portfolio consists of the various typesa#is described in Note 4, Loans. Real estate @r @isets secure most loi
The majority of loans has been made to individaald businesses in the Companyarket of South Louisiana. Customers are depérah
the condition of the local economy for their liveods and servicing their loan obligations. The @any does not have any signific
concentrations in any one industry or individusdtomer.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASC Topic 81“Consolidation” Update No. 2014-13The Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FAS&ued Update No. 2014-
13 in August 2014 to reduce diversity in the acdmgnfor the measurement difference in both théidhconsolidation and the subseqt
measurement of the financial assets and the finhliabilities of a collateralized financing entitfhe amendments clarify that (1) the fair vi
of the financial assets and the fair value of tharfcial liabilities of the consolidated collatézald financing entity should be measured u
the requirements of Accounting Standards Codificaf{ASC”) Topic 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosuresmd (2) any differenc
in the fair value of the financial assets and thie alue of the financial liabilities of that caislated collateralized financing entity shoulc
reflected in earnings and attributed to the repgréntity in the




consolidated statement of income (loss). The ameniBrin this update are effective for the annudbpesnding after December 15, 2015,
for the annual periods and interim periods theezaffarly adoption is permitted. The adoption af gtandard is not expected to have a ma
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial {imsi

FASB ASC Topic 3-40 “Receivables — Troubled Debt Restructuringogditors” Update No. 2014-14he FASB issued Update No. 2014
14 in August 2014 to reduce diversity in practielated to how creditors classify governmgaaranteed mortgage loans, including FHA or
guaranteed loans, upon foreclosure. The amendmegtsre that a mortgage loan be derecognized amdathseparate other receivable
recognized upon foreclosure if the following coratis are met: (1) the loan has a government guseathiat is not separable from the |
before foreclosure; (2) at the time of foreclosuhe, creditor has the intent to convey the realtegiroperty to the guarantor and make a ¢
on the guarantee, and the creditor has the abdlitgcover under that claim; and (3) at the timéooéclosure, any amount of the claim th:
determined on the basis of the fair value of tte estate is fixed. The amendments in this updatefiective for the annual period beginr
after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permhitidhe adoption of this standard is not expectduaie a material impact on the Company’
consolidated financial position.

FASB ASC Topic 2-40 “Presentation of Financial Statements — Goingn€ern” Update No. 2014-19.he FASB issued Update No. 2018-
in August 2014 to reduce diversity in the timinglaoontent of footnote disclosures related to aityestability to continue as a going conci
The amendments require management to assess gnsealility to continue as a going concern by incoaging and expanding upon cert
principles that are currently in U.S. auditing stards. Specifically, the amendments (1) providefindion of the termsubstantial doubt(2)
require an evaluation every reporting period inolgdinterim periods, (3) provide principles for sittering the mitigating effect
management’s plans, (4) require certain discloswteen substantial doubt is alleviated as a redutbasideration of managemestplans, (£
require an express statement and other disclosires substantial doubt is not alleviated, and ¢guire an assessment for a period of one
after the date that the financial statements aneeid (or available to be issued). The amendmentsisnupdate are effective for the ant
period ending after December 15, 2016, and for ahperiods and interim periods thereafter. Earlgpithn is permitted. The adoption of t
standard is not expected to have a material impathe Company’s consolidated financial position.

NOTE 2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a summary of the information usedhe computation of basic and diluted earningsgmenmon share for the three and |
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 (dalldn®usands, except share data):

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30 September 30
2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income available to common shareholc $ 144z $ 674 $ 3,38¢ $ 2,99(
Weighted average number of common shares outsigndin
used in computation of basic earnings per comsiaine 7,064,80¢ 3,887,94. 4,967,39. 3,567,29:
Effect of dilutive securities
Restricted stoc 35,251 42,94( 45,64¢ 26,99¢
Stock options 22,811 30,31¢( 22,811 30,31¢(
Stock warrant: 189,60! 193,49¢ 192,18¢ 193,54¢
Weighted average number of common shares outsgndin
plus effect of dilutive securities used in corgtion
of diluted
earnings per common shs 7,312,46! 4,154,69( 5,228,03 3,818,14!
Basic earnings per she $ 02C $ 017 $ 0.68 $ 0.84
Diluted earnings per sha $ 0.2C $ 0.1€ $ 0.6 $ 0.78
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and approximate fair value wéstiment securities classified as available for sa¢ summarized as follows as of the ¢

presented (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201.

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies amgarations
Mortgagebacked securitie

Obligations of state and political subdivisic

Corporate bond

Equity mutual fund:

Total

December 31, 2013

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies amgarations
Mortgage-backed securitie

Obligations of state and political subdivisic

Corporate bond

Equity mutual fund:

Total

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 3,285 $ 36 $ (26) $ 3,29t
57,212 183 (159) 57,23¢
11,34¢ 136 (85) 11,397
5,41€ 30 (19) 5,427
506 - (22) 484
$ 77,765 3 385 $ (311) $  77,83¢
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 2,221 $ 26 $ (43) $ 2,21C
34,47¢ 204 (220) 34,46
14,581 14 (495) 14,10(
4,941 13 (29) 4,92t
506 - (30) 476
$ 56,73° $ 257 $ (817) $  56,17¢

The amortized cost and approximate fair value eéstment securities classified as held to mataniey summarized as follows as of the d

presented (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201.

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies amgarations
Mortgage-backed securitie

Obligations of state and political subdivisic

Total

December 31, 2013

Obligations of other U.S. government agencies amgarations
Mortgage-backed securitie
Total

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 3977 $ - % (188) $ 3,78¢
3,62t - (124) 3,501
7,371 - - 7,371
$  1497¢ 3 - $ (3120 $ 14,661
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
$ 3972 $ - % (380) $ 3,592
2,607 - (213) 2,39/
$ 6,67¢ $ - $ (593) $ 5,98¢€

The Company had no securities classified as tgaalinof September 30, 2014 or December 31, 2013.
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The aggregate fair values and aggregate unrediiwsés on securities whose fair values are belovk balues are summarized in the ta
below. Due to the nature of the investment andecurmarket prices, these unrealized losses arddewad a temporary impairment of
securities.

The following table presents, by type and numbesexfurities, the age of gross unrealized lossesfaindalue by investment category
securities available for sale as of the dates ptedgdollars in thousands):

September 30, 201. Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Count Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Obligations of other U.S. government

agencies and corporatic 4 $ 906 $ 4 $ 577 $ (22) $ 1.48: $ (26)
Mortgage-backed securitie 64 28,49: (131) 1,91¢ (28) 30,411 (159)
Obligations of state and political

subdivision 17 758 (2) 4,602 (84) 5,36( (86)
Corporate bond 5 934 (16) 547 (2) 1,481 (18)
Equity mutual fund: 1 484 (22) - - 484 (22)
Total 91 $ 3157 $ (175 $ 7644 $ (136 $ 39,21¢ $ (311)
December 31, 201. Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Count Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Obligations of other U.S. government

agencies and corporatic 4 $ 1337 $ (43) $ - $ - $ 1337 $ (43)
Mortgage-backed securitie a7 18,76¢ (220) - - 18,76¢ (220)
Obligations of state and political

subdivision 49 11,81¢ (495) - - 11,81¢ (495)
Corporate bond 7 2,82C (28) 298 (1) 3,11¢ (29)
Equity mutual fund: 1 476 (30) - - 476 (30)
Total 108 $ 35,21t $ (816 $ 298 $ (1) $ 3551 $ (817

The following table presents, by type and numbesediurities, the age of gross unrealized losse$aindalue by investment category for
securities held to maturity as of the dates presk(dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201. Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Count Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of other U.S. government
agencies and corporatic 2 % - $ - $ 3,78 $ (188 $ 3,78 $ (189
Mortgage-backed securitie 4 1,064 (10) 2,437 (114) 3,501 (124)
Obligations of state and political
subdivision: 1 - - 7,371 - 7,371 -
Total 7 $ 1064 $ (10) $ 13597 $ (302) $ 14,661 $ (312
December 31, 201 Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Count Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of other U.S. government
agencies and corporatic 2 $ 3592 $ (380 % - $ - $ 3592 $ (380
Mortgagebacked securitie 3 2,394 (213) - - 2,394 (213)
Total 5 $ 598 $ (593 $ - 3 - $ 598 $ (593)

The unrealized losses in the Baslkvestment portfolio, caused by interest rategases, are not credit issues, and the Bank ddeéstend tc
sell the securities and it is not more likely theot that the Bank will be required to sell the istveents before recovery of
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their amortized cost bases. The Bank does not denshese securities to be other-themporarily impaired at September 30, 201
December 31, 2013.

Other equity securities at September 30, 2014 awkdber 31, 2013 include Federal Home Loan BankramstiNational Bankers Bankshal
Inc. stock. This stock is considered restrictedlstas only banks that are members of the organizatiay acquire or redeem shares of
stock. The stock is redeemable at its face vahexgfore, there are no gross unrealized gainssseassociated with this investment.

The Company invested $500,000 in an equity mutuati fknown as the Community Reinvestment Act Quadifinvestment Fund (tick
CRAIX) on May 11, 2012. The mutual fund is composédaxable municipal bonds, money market fundsalsbusiness administration pot
corporate bonds, single family agency mortgage-badecurities, and multifamily agency mortgégeked securities. This investment
made in accordance with the Company’s CommunitynRestment Act (“CRA")action plan in order to receive CRA credit. The ragpnate
fair value of the investment in the fund was $488,&Gnd $476,000 at September 30, 2014 and Decedtb2013, respectively.

The weighted average tax equivalent yield, amadtizest and approximate fair value of investmentt dslzurities, by contractual matu
(including mortgagdésacked securities), are shown below as of the datesented. Actual maturities will differ from ceenttual maturitie
because borrowers may have the right to call grgyr@bligations with or without call or prepaymgenalties (dollars in thousands).

September 30, 2014 Securities Available For Sale Securities Held To Maturity
Weighted Weighted
Average T.E. Amortized Fair Average T.E. Amortized Fair
Yield Cost Value Yield Cost Value
Due within one year 1.21% $ 101 $ 101 0.00% $ - $ =
Due after one year through five ye 1.66% 1,872 1,867 0.00% - -
Due after five years through ten ye 2.35% 18,373 18,42¢ 0.00% - -
Due after ten yeal 2.32% 56,91 56,95¢ 3.33% 14,97 14,661
Total debt securitie 77,25¢ 77,35t 14,97: 14,661
Total equity securitie 506 484 - -
$ 77,765 $ 77,83¢ $ 14,97 $ 14,661
December 31, 2013 Securities Available For Sale Securities Held To Maturity
Weighted Weighted
Average T.E. Amortized Fair Average T.E. Amortized Fair
Yield Cost Value Yield Cost Value
Due within one year 2.05% $ 697 $ 702 0.00% $ - $ =
Due after one year through five ye 1.38% 2,542 2,55C 0.00% - -
Due after five years through ten ye 2.69% 10,80¢ 10,701 0.00% - -
Due after ten yeal 2.3% 42,17¢ 41,73¢ 2.26% 6,57¢ 5,98¢€
Total debt securitie 56,221 55,691 6,57¢ 5,98¢€
Total equity securitie 506 476 - -
$ 56,73 $ 56,17 $ 6,57¢ $ 5,98¢€
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NOTE 4. LOANS

The Companys loan portfolio, excluding loans held for salensists of the following categories of loans ashaf tlates presented (dollar:
thousands):

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Mortgage loans on real esta

Construction and developme $ 62,34: $ 63,17(
1-4 Family 131,95 104,68¢
Multifamily 16,66¢ 14,28¢
Farmland 2,24¢ 830
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 208,86¢ 157,36:
Commercial and industri 44,29¢ 32,66¢
Consume 115,06t 131,09¢
Total loans $ 581,441 $ 504,09t

The following table provides an analysis of thenagdf loans as of the dates presented (dollatsangands):

September 30, 201

Past Due and Accruing

Total Past
90 or more Due &
3C-59 days 60-89 days days Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Current Total Loans
Construction and developme $ 177 $ - $ - $ 453 $ 630 $ 61,712 $ 62,342
1-4 Family 27 - - 517 544  131,40¢ 131,95
Multifamily - - - - - 16,66¢ 16,66¢
Farmland - - - - - 2,24¢ 2,24¢
Nonfarm, nonresidentic - - - 114 114 208,75¢ 208,86¢
Total mortgage loans on real est 204 - - 1,084 1,28¢  420,78¢ 422,07
Commercial and industrii 34 - - 182 216 44,08: 44,29¢
Consume 96 95 - 196 387 114,67¢ 115,06¢
Total loans $ 334 $ 95 $ - $ 1,46z $ 1,891 $579,55( $ 581,44
December 31, 201
Past Due and Accruing
Total Past
90 or more Due &
3C-59 days 60-89 days days Nonaccrual Nonaccrual Current Total Loans
Construction and developme $ 62 $ 34 $ - $ 891 $ 987 $ 62,18 $ 63,17(
1-4 Family 81 - - 141 222 104,46: 104,68¢
Multifamily - - - - - 14,28¢ 14,28¢
Farmland - - - - - 830 830
Nonfarm, nonresidenti 122 - - 187 309 157,05¢ 157,36:
Total mortgage loans on real est 265 34 - 1,21¢ 1,51¢ 338,81¢ 340,33¢
Commercial and industri - - - 119 119 32,54¢ 32,66&
Consume 120 27 - 151 298 130,79¢ 131,09¢
Total loans $ 385 $ 61 3$ - $ 1,48¢ $ 1,935 $502,16( $ 504,09¢

On October 1, 2011, the Bank acquired South LomgsBusiness Bank (“SLBB™g full service commercial bank headquartered irriexélle,
Louisiana. On May 1, 2013, the Bank acquired Frstnmunity Bank (“FCB”),a full service commercial bank headquartered in imamd
Louisiana.

Total loans at September 30, 2014 include appraxiin®48.5 million of loans acquired in the FCB &IdBB acquisitions that were recort
at fair value as of the acquisition dates. Inclugdethe acquired loan balances at September 30} @@te approximately $0.2 million in loz
30-59 days outstanding and $0.7 million in nonaatloans. There were no acquired loans880r 90 or more days outstanding at Septe
30, 2014.
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Total loans at December 31, 2013 include approxeinai6t4.8 million of loans acquired in the FCB &8IdBB acquisitions that were recort
at fair value as of the acquisition dates. Inclughethe acquired loan balances as December 31, @18 approximately $0.2 million in loe
30-59 days outstanding, $34,000 in loans860days outstanding, and $1.2 million in nonacclo@hs. There were no acquired loans 90 or
days outstanding at December 31, 2013.

Credit Quality Indicators

Loans are categorized into risk categories basetkl@vant information about the ability of borroweo service their debt, such as cur
financial information, historical payment experiencredit documentation, public information, andreat economic trends, among of
factors. The following definitions are utilized fask ratings, which are consistent with the ddifimis used in supervisory guidance:

Pass— Loans not meeting the criteria below are considgrass. These loans have the highest credit chasdicte and financial streng
Borrowers possess characteristics that are higlofitable, with low to negligible leverage and demtrate significant net worth and liquidity.

Special Mention — Loans classified as special mention have a patemteakness that deserves managersentbse attention. If le
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may fegisterioration of the repayment prospects foritiam or of the Compang’credit position i
some future date.

Substandard— Loans classified as substandard are inadequatetgqgted by the current net worth and paying capadithe obligor or of th
collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classifiedéhawvelldefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardizethdation of the debt. They ¢
characterized by the distinct possibility that @@mpany will sustain some loss if the deficieneies not corrected.

Doubtful — Loans classified as doubtful have all the weakresd®rent in those classified as substandard, tivéttadded characteristic that
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in foly the basis of currently existing facts, condisioand values, highly questionable
improbable.

Loss— Loans classified as loss are considered uncollectibd of such little value that their continuamserecorded assets is not warratr
This classification does not mean that the assate hbsolutely no recovery or salvage value, ltherat is not practical or desirable to d«
writing off these assets.

The following table presents a breakdown of the @amy’s loan portfolio by credit quality indicators as tbe dates presented (dollar:
thousands):

September 30, 201

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Total
Construction and developme $ 60,597 $ 345 % 1,40C $ 62,34z
1-4 Family 130,31¢ - 1,634 131,95:
Multifamily 15,607 - 1,05¢ 16,66¢
Farmland 2,24¢ - - 2,24¢
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 208,60¢ - 260 208,86¢
Total mortgage loans on real est 417,38( 345 4,352 422,07;
Commercial and industri 44,11( - 189 44,29¢
Consume 114,535 223 305 115,06
Total loans $ 576,027 $ 568 $ 484 $ 581,44
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December 31, 2013

Special
Pass Mention Substandard Total
Construction and developme $ 61,39¢ $ 362 $ 1,40¢ $ 63,17(
1-4 Family 103,40¢ 259 1,01¢ 104,68¢
Multifamily 13,31¢ - 967 14,28¢
Farmland 830 - - 830
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 156,44¢ 370 545 157,36:
Total mortgage loans on real est 335,40 991 3,93¢ 340,33¢
Commercial and industri 32,53¢ 5 122 32,66¢
Consume 130,717 228 151 131,09¢
Total loans $ 498,65¢ $ 1224 $ 421z $ 504,09t

The Company had no loans that were classified abtfld or loss as of September 30, 2014 or Decer@bep013.

Loan participations and whole loans sold to andiised for others are not included in the accompagndonsolidated balance sheets.
unpaid principal balances of these loans were apadely $181.0 million and $59.8 million as of $&pber 30, 2014 and December 31, 2
respectively.

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyesmdsans to its executive officers, principal stomklers, directors and to companie
which these borrowers are principal owners. Loauistanding to such borrowers (including companiesvhich they are principal owne
amounted to approximately $13.4 million and $11iBion as of September 30, 2014 and December 3132fespectively. These loans are
current and performing according to the originahte. These loans were made on substantially the ¢arms, including interest rates

collateral, as those prevailing at the time for panable transactions with persons not related@écCtbmpany or the Bank and did not invc
more than normal risk of collectability or presettier unfavorable features.

The aggregate amount of loans to such relatedegagtias follows as of the dates presented (datigtousands):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Balance, beginning of peric $ 11,781 $ 10,96¢
Acquired loans - 159
New loans 2,94¢ 3,17¢
Repayment (1,299 (2,52¢6)
Balance, end of peric $ 13432 $ 11,781

The Company elected to account for certain loagsiiaed in the FCB acquisition as acquired impaighs under FASB ASC 310-3Dpans
and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Greguality (“ASC 310-30"),due to evidence of credit deterioration at acqoisiand th
probability that the Company will be unable to eotlall contractually required payments.

The following table presents the fair value of Isatquired with deteriorated credit quality astaf tate of the FCB acquisition (dollar:
thousands):

May 1, 2013
Contractually required principal and inter $ 7,47C
Nonaccretable differenc (2,102)
Cash flows expected to be collec 5,36¢
Accretable yielc (468)
Fair value of loans at acquisitit $ 4,90C

Total loans acquired in the FCB acquisition incldi$&2.6 million of performing loans not accounteddinder ASC 310-30.
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The following table presents changes in the cagryialue, net of allowance for loan losses, of thquired impaired loans for the peri
presented (dollars in thousands):

Acquired

Impaired
Carrying value, net at December 31, 2! $ S
Loans acquire: 4,90(
Accretion to interest incorr 150
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable differencérmm) accretable yiel 420
Payments received, n (619)
Transfers to real estate own (819)
Carrying value, net at December 31, 2! $ 4,032
Loans acquire: -
Accretion to interest incorr 120
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable differencérimm) accretable yiel 254
Payments received, n (626)
Chargeoffs (58)
Transfers to real estate own (628)
Carrying value, net at September 30, 2 $ 3,094

Accretable yield on acquired impaired loans at Seyier 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is as fol{dalars in thousands):

Acquired

Impaired
Balance, period ended December 31, 2 $ S
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable differencérmm) accretable yiel 420
Accretion (150)
Balance, period ended December 31, 2 $ 270
Net transfers from (to) nonaccretable differencérmm) accretable yiel 254
Accretion (120)
Balance, period ended September 30, 2 $ 404

NOTE 5. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses i®Hews as of the dates presented (dollars in thods):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Balance, beginning of peric $ 3,38C $ 2,72z
Provision for loan losse 1,19¢ 1,02¢
Loans charge-off (321) (389)
Recoveries 71 21
Balance, end of peric $ 4,326 $ 3,38(C
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The following tables outline the changes in thevadince for loan losses by collateral type, thevadloces for loans individually and collectiv
evaluated for impairment, and the amount of loawvidually and collectively evaluated for impairnteas of and for the nine months en
September 30, 2014 and the year ended Decemb2033 (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201

Construction & Nonfarm, Commercial &

Development Farmland 1-4 Family Multifamily  Nonresidential Industrial Consumer Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning balanc $ 420 $ 4% 567 % 101 $ 992 $ 397 $ 899 3,38(
Chargeoffs } 5 (65) } 2) (16) (238) (321)
Recoverie: 1 - 2 - 1 16 51 71
Provision 160 7 238 13 799 (113) 94 1,19¢
Ending balanc $ 581 $ 11 $ 742 $ 114 $ 1,79C $ 284 $ 806 $ 4,32¢

Ending allowance balance for loans

individually evaluated for

impairmen - - - - - - 75 75
Ending allowance balance for loans

collectively evaluated for

impairmen $ 581 $ 11 $ 742 % 114 $ 1,79C $ 284 $ 731 $ 4,25%
Ending allowance balance for loans

acquired with deteriorated credit

quality $ -$ -3 - $ -3 - $ - $ - $ >

Loans receivable:
Balance of loans individually

evaluated for impairme $ 1,40C $ -$ 1634 $ 1,05€ $ 260 $ 189 $ 305 $ 4,84¢
Balance of loans collectively

evaluated for impairme 60,942 2,24¢  130,31¢ 15,607 208,60¢ 44,11C 114,76( 576,59¢
Total perio-end balanc: $ 62,342 $ 2,24¢ $131,95: $ 16,66t $ 208,86¢ $  44,29¢ $115,06¢ $581,44]
Balance of loans acquired with

deteriorated credit quali $ 1,15€¢ $ -$ 834 3% 105 $ - $ - $ 46 $ 3,094
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December 31, 2013
Construction & Nonfarm, Commercial &
Development Farmland 1-4 Family Multifamily Nonresidential Industrial Consumer Total

Allowance for loan losses:

Beginning balanc $ 276  $ - $ 415 3 17 % 977 $ 333 $ 704 2,72z
Chargeoffs - - - - - (118) (271) (389
Recoveries - - - - 21 21
Provision 144 4 152 84 15 182 445 1,02¢€
Ending balanc $ 420 % 4 $ 567 $ 101  $ 992 $ 397 $ 899 $ 3,38C

Ending allowance balance for
loans
individually evaluated for
impairmen $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 37 % 37
Ending allowance balance for
loans
collectively evaluated for
impairmen $ 420 $ 4 $ 567 $ 101 % 992 $ 397 $ 862 $ 3,34:
Ending allowance balance for
loans
acquired with deteriorated
credit
quality $ - 8 - $ - $ - 8 - $ - 3 - $ -

Loans receivable:
Balance of loans individually

evaluated for impairme $ 1,40¢ $ - $ 1,01 $ 967 $ 545 $ 122 $ 151 $ 4,21z
Balance of loans collectively

evaluated for impairme $ 61,761 $ 830 $103,66: $ 13,31¢ $ 156,81¢ $ 32,547 $130,94f $499,88:
Total perio-end balanc: $ 63,17C $ 830 $104,68: $ 14,28¢ $ 157,36¢ $ 32,66t $131,09¢ $504,09¢
Balance of loans acquired with

deteriorated credit quali $ 1477 % - $ 9% $ 967 $ 545  $ - 8 47 $ 4,03z

Impaired Loans

The Company considers a loan to be impaired whasedon current information and events, the Compgatgrmines that it will not be able
collect all amounts due according to the loan agesd, including scheduled interest payments. Dateation of impairment is treated the s¢
across all classes of loans. When the Companyiisna loan as impaired, it measures the impaitrbased on the present value of expe
future cash flows, discounted at the Icaeffective interest rate, except when the solmé#iring) source of repayment for the loans is
operation or liquidation of the collateral. In teesases when foreclosure is probable, the Compsey the current fair value of the collate
less selling costs, instead of discounted cashsfldivthe Company determines that the value ofitgaired loan is less than the recor
investment in the loan (net of previous chaoffs; deferred loan fees or costs and unamortizethjum or discount), the Company recogn
impairment through an allowance estimate or a araffjrecorded against the allowance.

When the ultimate collectability of the total pripal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the losmm nonaccrual, all payments are applie
principal, under the cost recovery method. Whenullimate collectability of the total principal ah impaired loan is not in doubt and the
is on nonaccrual, contractual interest is crediteidterest income when received, under the casls bbaethod.

The following tables include the recorded investtraard unpaid principal balances for impaired loaith the associated allowance amour
applicable. The Company determined the specifisnahce based on the present values of expectee foaaish flows, discounted at the laan’
effective interest rate, except when the remaisimgyce of repayment for the loan is the operatioligaidation of the collateral. In those ca:
the current fair value of the collateral, lessisglicost, was used to determine the specific allmeaecorded.

19




Also presented in the tables below is the averagerded investment of the impaired loans and tlaere: amount of interest recognized du
the time within the period that the impaired loavexre impaired. The average balances are calcutstseed on the montbrd balances of t
loans during the period reported (dollars in thoais.

As of and for the nine months ended September 30024

Unpaid Average Interest

Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognizec
With no related allowance recorded:
Construction and developme $ 1,40¢ $ 1,40C $ - 8 1,417 $ 40
1-4 Family residentis 1,637 1,634 - 1,711 61
Multifamily 1,064 1,05¢ - 1,02¢ 49
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 262 260 - 270 10
Total mortgage loans on real est 4,371 4,352 - 4,42¢€ 160
Commercial and industri 192 189 - 362 -
Consume 72 71 - 78 5
Total 4,63E 4,612 - 4,86€ 165
With related allowance recorded:
Consume 234 234 75 241 4
Total 234 234 75 241 4
Total loans:
Construction and developme 1,40¢ 1,40C - 1,417 40
1-4 Family residentis 1,637 1,634 - 1,711 61
Multifamily 1,064 1,05¢ - 1,02¢ 49
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 262 260 - 270 10
Total mortgage loans on real est 4,371 4,352 - 4,42¢€ 160
Commercial and industri 192 189 - 362 -
Consume 306 305 75 319 9
Total $ 4,86 $ 4,84 $ 75 3 5107 $ 169

20




With no related allowance recorded:

Construction and developme

1-4 Family residentia

Multifamily

Nonfarm, nonresidenti

Total mortgage loans on real est
Commercial and industrii
Consume

Total

With related allowance recorded:
Consume
Total

Total loans:

Construction and developme

1-4 Family residentia

Multifamily

Nonfarm, nonresidenti

Total mortgage loans on real est
Commercial and industrii
Consume

Total

Troubled Debt Restructurings

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2013

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognizec
$ 1,64 $ 1,40¢ $ - $ 1,42t % 25
1,04C 1,01¢ - 1,02t 45
969 967 - 910 671
555 545 = 563 19
4,215 3,93¢ - 3,92¢ 760
140 122 - 133 -
21 18 - 76 2
4,374 4,07¢ = 4,132 762
136 133 37 138 5
136 133 37 138 5
1,64¢ 1,40¢ - 1,42¢ 25
1,04C 1,01¢ - 1,02t 45
969 967 - 910 671
555 545 = 563 19
4,215 3,93¢ - 3,92¢ 760
140 122 - 133 -
157 151 37 214 7
$ 451C $ 4,21z $ 37 $ 427C $ 767

In situations where, for economic or legal reas@fated to a borrowes’financial difficulties, the Company grants a cession for other th:
an insignificant period of time to the borrowertthlde Company would not otherwise consider, thateel loan is classified as a troubled
restructuring (“TDR”).The Company strives to identify borrowers in finahdifficulty early and work with them to modiffeir loans to moi
affordable terms before such loans reach nonacstatls. These modified terms may include rateatahs, principal forgiveness, paym
forbearance and other actions intended to minirttizeeconomic loss and to avoid foreclosure or regesion of the collateral. In cases w
the Company grants the borrower new terms thatigeofor a reduction of either interest or principlle Company measures any impairr

on the restructuring as previously noted for impéiloans.

Loans classified as TDRs, consisting of seven tgethtaled approximately $903,000 at Septembe2804 compared to four credits total
approximately $815,000 at December 31, 2013. Athef Companys TDRs were acquired from FCB. All seven creditseneonsidered TDF
due to modification of terms through adjustmentstturity, and all are currently performing in aatance with their modified terms.

The following table presents the TDR pre- and postification outstanding recorded investments tanloategories as of the dates prese

(dollars in thousands):

September 30, 2014

December 31, 2013

Pre- Pos*- Pre- Pos-
Modification ~ Modification Modification ~ Modification
Outstanding  Outstanding Outstanding  Outstanding
Number of Recorded Recorded Number of Recorded Recorded
Troubled debt restructurings Contracts Investment Investment Contracts Investment Investment
Other construction loar 4 $ 499 $ 499 2 $ 454 % 454
Commercial real estate: r-owner occupiet 1 356 356 1 358 358
Commercial and industrii 1 2 2 1 3 3
Consume 1 46 46 0 - -
$ 903 $ 903 $ 815 $ 815
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NOTE 6. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Equity Incentive PlanThe Company’s 2014 Long-Term Incentive CompensaBtan (the “Plan”)authorizes the grant of various type:
equity grants and awards, such as restricted sttokk options and stock appreciation rights tgilele participants, which include all of «
employees and our na@mployee directors. The Plan has reserved 600/@@s of common stock for grant, award or issuamckrectors an
employees, including shares underlying grantedoapti The Plan is administered by the Compensatmmmiittee of our Board of Directo
which determines, within the provisions of the Plgnose eligible employees to whom, and the timieghéch, grants and awards will be me
The Compensation Committee, in its discretion, rdelegate its authority and duties under the Plaspgxified officers; however, only 1
Compensation Committee may approve the terms oftgend awards to our executive officers.

Stock Options

The Company uses a Black-Scholes option pricingahtm estimate the fair value of share-based awdrls BlackScholes option pricir
model incorporates various and highly subjectiveuasptions, including expected term and expectedtiity. Stock option expense in 1
accompanying consolidated statement of operationthé three and nine months ended September 3@, 28s $31,000. There was no si
option expense recognized for the three and ningmscended September 30, 2013.

The following assumptions were used for the 216 @@tions granted during the three and nine montkde@ September 30:

2014
Expected dividend 0.3€ %
Expected volatility 19.01 %
Risk-free interest rat 217 %
Expected term (in year 7.0
Weightec-average grant date fair val $ 3.44

At September 30, 2014, there was $0.7 million akoognized compensation cost related to stock ogtioat is expected to be recognized
a weighted-average period of 5.75 years.

The following table represents the activity relatedtock options during the periods indicated.

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Stock Options Average Contractual
Shares Price Term (Years)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 22811 $ 13.3¢ 4.88
Issuec 216,00( 14.0C
Forfeited - -
Exercisec - -
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 (Unaudited) 238,811 $ 13.94 9.21
Exercisable options at September 30, 2 22,811 % 13.3¢ 4,13

At September 30, 2014, the shares underlying oudsig stock options and underlying exercisablekstyations had no aggregate intrinsic
value.

Time Vested Restricted Stock Awards

The Company has issued shares of time vestedatestrstock with vesting terms ranging from one ito y®ars. The total shatease:
compensation expense for these awards is deterrbasst on the market price of the Compampmmon stock at the grant date applied t
total number of shares awarded and is amortizedtbeevesting period.
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The following table presents the time vested ref&td stock award activity for 2014:

Weighted Avg

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 44.09C $ 13.9¢
Grantec 9,917 14.0C
Forfeited - -
Vested (12,264) 13.9¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2014 (Unaudited) 41,74 $ 14.0C

At September 30, 2014, there was $0.5 million okoognized compensation cost related to time vast&dcted stock awards that is expe
to be recognized over a weighted average peri@lodf years.

NOTE 7. DERIVATIVE — INTEREST RATE SWAP

On August 7, 2014, the Bank entered into a forwstadting interest rate swap contract to manage sxpoagainst the variability in 1
expected future cash flows (future interest paysjestributable to changes in the 1 month LIBORveisded with the forecasted issuances
month fixed rate debt arising from a rollover st@t. An interest rate swap is an agreement wheoekyparty agrees to pay a fixed rat
interest on a notional principal amount in exchafagereceiving a floating rate of interest on treang notional amount, for a predetermi
period of time, from a second party. The amounitgirgy to the notional principal amount are notuadly exchanged. The maximum lengtt
time over which the Bank is currently hedging ig@sure to the variability in future cash flows forecasted transactionsfive years. Th
total notional amount of the derivative contracs19.0 million.

For the three months ended September 30, 2014ss db $5,000 has been recognized in other compseleer{loss) income in tl
accompanying consolidated statement of other canemsve income for the change in fair value ofititerest rate swap. The swap cont
had a negative fair value of $5,000 as of Septer@@e2014 and has been recorded in other lialslitiehe accompanying consolidated bali
sheet. The amount included in accumulated othepcehensive income (loss) would be reclassifiedutwent earnings if the hedge transac
becomes probable of not occurring. The Bank exgeettiedge to remain fully effective during the a@énng term of the swap contract.

NOTE 8. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 8Zair Value Measurement and Disclosuf&SC 820"), disclosure of fair value information ab
financial instruments, whether or not recognizethim balance sheet, is required. The fair value fifiancial instrument is the price that wc
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfebdity in an orderly transaction between marketrticipants at the measurement date L
current market conditions. Fair value is best deteed based upon quoted market prices. In casesevgueted market prices are not availe
fair values are based on estimates using presdoé v@ other valuation techniques. Those technicares significantly affected by t
assumptions used, including the discount rate atiates of future cash flows, and the fair valséineates may not be realized in
immediate settlement of the instruments. Accordintiie aggregate fair value amounts presented toepoesent the underlying value of
Company.

If there has been a significant decrease in thermeland level of activity for the asset or lialilia change in valuation technique or the u:
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriatesuch instances, determining the price at whidlngimarket participants would transac
the measurement date under current market conglilepends on the facts and circumstances and esquse of significant judgment. The
value is a reasonable point within the range thatdst representative of fair value under currestket conditions.

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with ASC 820, the Company groupBrigsmcial assets and financial liabilities measuasethir value in three levels, based or
markets in which the assets and liabilities ardeideand the reliability of the assumptions usedietiermine fair value.

Level 1- Valuation is based on quoted prices in active ntarfa identical assets or liabilities that thearmg entity has the ability to acc
at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and tiebitjenerally include debt and equity securities fire traded in an active exchange me
Valuations are obtained from readily available ipgcsources for market transactions involving idEaitassets or liabilities.
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Level 2—Valuation is based on inputs other than quotecdeprincluded within level 1 that are observabletli@rasset or liability, either direc
or indirectly. The valuation may be based on qugeces for similar assets or liabilities; quoteites in markets that are not active; or @
inputs that are observable or can be corroborataabbervable market data for substantially thetrin of the asset or liability.

Level 3— Valuation is based on unobservable inputs thasapported by little or no market activity and that¢ significant to the fair value
the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets andlites include financial instruments whose valual&ermined using pricing models, discoul
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniqueswa#i as instruments for which determination of fa#lue requires significant managen
judgment or estimatior

A financial instrumeng categorization within the valuation hierarchyp#&sed upon the lowest level of input that is sigaiit to the fair vall
measurement.

The following methods and assumptions were usetthdy"ompany in estimating fair value disclosuredifancial instruments:

Investments and Mortga-Backed Securities Where quoted prices are available in an active etatke Company classifies the secur
within level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Secwd#tiare defined as both long and short positionselL& securities include highly ligL
government bonds and exchange-traded equities.

If quoted market prices are not available, the Camypestimates fair values using pricing models disdounted cash flows that consi
standard input factors such as observable market #danchmark yields, interest rate volatilitiesopker/dealer quotes, and credit spre
Examples of such instruments, which would generaélyclassified within level 2 of the valuation firrhy, include Government Sponsc
Enterprise obligations, corporate bonds, and otemurities. Mortgageacked securities are included in level 2 if obable inputs ai
available. In certain cases where there is limaetvity or less transparency around inputs to ‘hkiation, the Company classifies th
securities in level 3. Equity mutual funds are eallbased on market quoted prices and are classifiedel 1 as they are actively traded.

Cash and Due from BanksFor these shoterm instruments, fair value is the carrying valash and due from banks is classified in level
the fair value hierarchy.

Federal Funds Sold/Purchased and Securities SoldedrmRepurchase Agreemer— The fair value is the carrying value. The Comg
classifies these assets in level 1 of the faire&lierarchy.

Loans— For variable-rate loans that peice frequently and with no significant changeciedit risk, fair values are based on carrying @a
Fair values for certain mortgage loans (for examptee-tofour family residential), credit card loans, anthest consumer loans are baset
qguoted market prices of similar instruments sol@éanjunction with securitization transactions, &t{ual for differences in loan characteris
Fair values for other loans (for example, comménaal estate and investment property mortgagesloaommercial and industrial loans)
estimated using discounted cash flow analysesgusarket interest rates for comparable loans. Fires for nonperforming loans, which
loans for which the accrual of interest has stopprdldans that are contractually 90 past due orthvhiterest continues to accrue, are estin
using discounted cash flow analyses or underlymitateral values, where applicable. The Compangsifa@s loans in level 3 of the fair va
hierarchy.

Loans held for sale are measured using quoted mprrices when available. If quoted market pricesraot available, comparable market va
or discounted cash flow analyses may be utilizésgk Tompany classifies these assets in level 2edfdin value hierarchy.

Real Estate Owne— The fair values are estimated based on recent igpbralues of the property less costs to sellpituperty, as real est:
owned is valued at the lower of cost or fair vatiighe property, less estimated costs to sell. dieihputs used in appraisals are not ah
observable, and therefore real estate owned majabsified in level 3 within the fair value hierayc When inputs are observable, these a
are classified in level 2 of the fair value hietarc

Accrued Interes— The carrying amounts of accrued interest appraterfair value and are classified in level 1 offdie value hierarchy.
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Deposit Liabilities— The fair values disclosed for demand deposits€k@mple, interest and noninterest checking, sayamys certain types
money market accounts) are, by definition, equahtoamount payable on demand at the reporting (¢tiadé is, their carrying amounts). 1
carrying amounts of variable-rate, fixéelkn money market accounts and certificates of sieapproximate their fair values at the repoi
date. These deposits are classified in level Zeffair value hierarchy. Fair values for fixeate certificates of deposit are estimated us
discounted cash flow calculation that applies markierest rates on comparable instruments to adidb of aggregated expected mor
maturities on time deposits. These deposits assified in level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Short-Term Borrowings Fhe carrying amounts of federal funds purchasedolaongs under repurchase agreements, and othet-teno
borrowings maturing within 90 days approximate ttiair values and classified in level 2 of the fa@ue hierarchy. Fair values of other shor
term borrowings are estimated using discounted lashanalyses based on current market rates foilasi types of borrowing arrangeme
and are classified in level 3 of the fair valueraiehy.

Long-Term Borrowings- The fair values of long-term borrowings are eatied using discounted cash flows analyses basédeoGompanye
current incremental borrowing rates for similaragpf borrowing arrangements. The fair value ofGloenpany’s longerm debt is therefo
classified in level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

Commitments- The fair value of commitments to extend crediswat significant.

Derivative Instrument— The fair value for interest rate swap agreemergsbased upon the amounts required to settle thieactn Thes
derivative instruments are classified in level 2taf fair value hierarchy.

Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Measured oRecurring Basit

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacairring basis are summarized below; there wenr@bdities measured on a recurring bas
December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

September 30, 2014
Assets:

Mortgagebacked securitie $ 57,23¢ $ - $ 57,23¢ $ =

Obligations of other U.S. government agen 3,29t - 3,29¢ -

Obligations of state and political subdivisic 11,391 - 11,39 -

Corporate bond 5,427 - 5,427 -

Equity mutual fund: 484 484 - -

Total asset $ 77,83¢ $ 484 $ 77,355 $ -

Liabilities:

Interest rate swa $ 5 $ 5
December 31, 2013
Mortgagebacked securitie $ 34,46z $ - $ 34,46z $ =
Obligations of other U.S. government agen: 2,21C - 2,21C -
Obligations of state and political subdivisic 14,10 - 14,10 -
Corporate bond 4,92t - 4,92t -
Equity mutual fund: 476 476 - -
Total $ 56,17: $ 476 $ 55,697 $ -
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Fair Value of Assets Measured on a Nonrecurringi8

Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurrings lsae summarized below; there were no liabilinesasured on a nonrecurring basi
September 30, 2014 or December 31, 2013 (dollatsoimsands):

Quoted Prices in Significant

Active Markets for Significant Other Unobservable
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

September 30, 2014

Loans held for sal $ 53,30¢ $ - % - $ 53,30¢
Impaired loan: 4,771 - - 4,771
Real estate owne 2,96€ - - 2,96€
Total $ 61,04 $ - $ - $ 61,04:
December 31, 2013

Loans held for sal $ 5,02¢ $ - $ - $ 5,02¢
Impaired loan: 4,17¢ - - 4,17¢
Real estate owne 3,61F - - 3,61F
Total $ 12,71¢ 3 - $ - 9 12,71¢

The estimated fair values of the Companfihancial instruments at September 30, 2014 aecdebBiber 31, 2013 were as follows (dollar
thousands):

September 30, 201.

Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asset:
Cash and due from ban $ 18,727 $ 18,727 $ 18,7271 $ - $ -
Federal funds sol 500 500 500 - -
Investment securitie 92,81z 92,50( - 92,50( -
Other equity securitie 3,184 3,184 - 3,184 -
Loans, net of allowanc 630,41¢ 631,83( - - 631,83(
Accrued interest receivab 1,977 1,977 1,977 - -
Financial liabilities:
Deposits, nonintere-bearing $ 7261¢ $ 67,89¢ - $ 67,89¢ $ -
Deposits, intere-bearing 548,99: 546,077 - - 546,077
FHLB shor-term advances and repurchase agreen 16,15t 16,15¢ - 16,15t -
FHLB long-term advance 34,322 34,37¢ - - 34,37¢
Other borrowed func-long term 3,60¢ 3,60¢ - - 3,60¢
Accrued interest payab 282 282 282 - -
Interest rate swa 5 5 - 5 -
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December 31, 2013

Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asset:
Cash and due from ban $ 27,702 $ 27,702 $ 27,70 % - $ -
Federal funds sol 500 500 500 - -
Investment securitie 62,752 62,15¢ 476 61,83: -
Other equity securitie 2,02C 2,02C - 2,02C -
Loans, net of allowanc 505,74 510,99¢ - - 510,99¢
Accrued interest receivab 1,83¢ 1,83t 1,83& - -
Financial liabilities:
Deposits, nonintere-bearing $ 72,79t $ 72,79 $ - $ 72,798 3 -
Deposits, intere-bearing 459,811 456,04¢ - - 456,04¢
FHLB shor-term advances and repurchase agreen 10,20 10,20: - 10,20: -
FHLB long-term advance 30,81¢ 30,89¢ - - 30,89¢
Other borrowed func-long term 3,60¢ 3,60t - - 3,60%
Accrued interest payab 285 285 285 - -

NOTE 9. INCOME TAXES

The expense for income taxes and the effectiverdse included in the consolidated statements ofaijpms is as follows for the peric
presented (dollars in thousands):

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 30 September 30
2014 2013 2014 2013
Income tax expens $ 699 $ 322 % 1,637 $ 1,05¢
Effective tax rate 32.6% 32.3% 32.6% 26.1%

The effective tax rates differ from the statutaay tate of 35% largely due to tax exempt intenasbime earned on certain investment securitie
and the bargain purchase gain recognized uporctiigsition of FCB in May 2013.

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshvatf-balancesheet risk entered into in the normal course ofrtmss to meet the financi
needs of its customers. These financial instrumiectade commitments to extend credit, which areincuded in the accompanying finan:
statements.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements todeowky with fixed expiration dates or terminatidauses. The Company applies the s
credit standards used in the lending process wikeanéing these commitments, and periodically ressesethe customer’creditworthines
through ongoing credit reviews. Since some commitsiare expected to expire without being drawn ypiea total commitment amounts
not necessarily represent future cash requirem@uitateral is obtained based on the Compsimgsessment of the transaction. Essentia
letters of credit issued have expiration datesiwitme year. At September 30, 2014 and Decembe2@3, the Compang’commitments |
extend credit totaled approximately $93.9 milliord&67.1 million, respectively.

The Company is required to maintain average reseatéhe Federal Reserve Bank. There were approedyrl 1.9 million and $4.6 million
required reserves at September 30, 2014 and Dec&hp2013, respectively.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section presents managemenerspective on the financial condition and resulf operations of Investar Holding Corporatione
“Company,” “we,” “our,” or “us”) and its wholly-own ed subsidiary, Investar Bank (the “Bank™he following discussion and analysis shi
be read in conjunction with our unaudited consdi@h financial statements and related notes theirtduded herein, and the audil
consolidated financial statements and notes andréfeted Managemers’ Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiomsl &Results «
Operations in the Registration Statement on ForintBat the Company originally filed with the Seties and Exchange Commission (“SBC”
on May 16, 2014, and subsequently amended. Assdisdun the Form $; in November 2013, the Company completed a sharieange wit
the Bank’s shareholders, resulting in the Bank b@og a whollyewned subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, ixiees below to financi
condition or results of operations or to eventscocumstances relating to dates or time periodptb the share exchange (even if “we,”
“our,” or “us” is used) relate to the Bank alone, while referenisew to financial condition or results of opemts or to events
circumstances relating to dates or time perioderathe share exchange pertain to the Company aeadtnk on a consolidated basis, un
the context explicitly dictates otherwise.

Overview

Our principal business is lending to and acceptlegosits from individuals and small to medisired businesses. We generate our in
principally from interest on loans and, to a lessdent, our securities investments, as well as ffees charged in connection with our var
loan and deposit services and gains on the sdtean§ and securities. Our principal expenses deedst expense on interdstaring custom
deposits and borrowings, salaries, employee bshefittcupancy costs, data processing and operatpenses. We measure our performi
through our net interest margin, return on averaggets, and return on average equity, among otb&ics) while maintaining appropri
regulatory leverage and risk-based capital ratios.

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
Total assets were $784.6 million at September 804 2an increase of 23.6% from total assets of $6@Mllion at December 31, 2013.

Loans

General. Loans, excluding loans held for sale, constitote most significant asset, comprising 74.1% andi%9of our total assets
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplycthoans, excluding loans held for sale, incrda$@7.3 million, or 15.3%, to $58:
million at September 30, 2014 from $504.1 millidrDeecember 31, 2013 as a result of organic loawirin our markets. The table below ¢
forth the balance of loans, excluding loans heldstde, outstanding by loan type as of the datesgmted, and the percentage of each loar
to total loans (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 201
Percentage of Percentage of
Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans

Mortgage loans on real esta

Construction and land developmi $ 62,34z 10.72 % $ 63,17(C 12.52 %

1-4 Family 131,95: 22.6¢ 104,68¢ 20.77

Multifamily 16,66t 2.87 14,28¢ 2.83

Farmland 2,24¢ 0.39 830 0.17

Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 208,86¢ 35.92 157,36: 31.22
Commercial and industri 44,29¢ 7.62 32,66t 6.48
Consume 115,06¢ 19.7¢ 131,09¢ 26.0(

Total loans $ 581,44 100 % $ 504,09t 100 %
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The following table sets forth loans outstandinGeptember 30, 2014, which, based on remaininglsdbe repayments of principal, are du
the periods indicated. Loans with balloon paymemis longer amortizations are often repriced andredé¢d beyond the initial maturity wt
credit conditions remain satisfactory. Demand lpdmans having no stated schedule of repaymentsarstated maturity, and overdrafts
reported below as due in one year or less.

After One After Five After Ten
One Year or Year Through  Years Through Years Through After Fifteen
(dollars in thousands Less Five Years Ten Years Fifteen Years Years Total
Mortgage loans on real esta
Construction and land developmt $ 40,54¢ $ 16,67 $ 3324 % 1,79¢ $ - $ 62,342
1-4 Family 10,17¢ 23,291 35,69¢ 25,751 37,031 131,95
Multifamily 3,47¢ 9,97¢€ 2,10C 1,111 - 16,66~
Farmland 55 - 727 1,467 - 2,24¢
Nonfarm, nonresidenti 15,52¢ 74,91°F 80,35¢ 37,492 576 208,86¢
Commercial and industrii 10,60¢ 14,51¢ 16,617 2,55€ - 44,29¢
Consume 1,85¢ 69,737 43,10¢ 360 - 115,06t
Total loans $ 8225( $ 209,11C $ 181,93( $ 70,53¢ $ 37,61 $ 581,441

Loans Held for Sal. Loans held for sale increased $48.3 million, 60.9%, to $53.3 million at September 30, 2014 fi®$5n0 million a
December 31, 2013. The increase is primarily du&360.0 million of consumer loans (primarily consigt of indirect auto loans) bei
classified as held for sale at September 30, 2Bb4consumer loans were classified as held for aaleecember 31, 2013. In the first r
months of 2014, we originated $51.6 million and 89&illion in mortgage loans and consumer loanssfile, respectively, as compare:
$72.4 million and $8.3 million in mortgage loanglamonsumer loans for sale, respectively, originatetie first nine months of 2013.

During the latter half of 2013 and continuing irttee third quarter of 2014, mortgage rates begamdeease, resulting in a decline
originations. As these rates are expected to remalgvated in 2014 relative to their historic lowsthe past two years, we do not ex
significant growth in mortgage originations.

One-to-four family mortgage loans not held in oortfolio are typically sold on a “best effortfasis within 30 days after the loan is funi
This means that residential real estate originatiare locked in at a contractual rate with a tipiagty investor or directly with governmi
sponsored agencies, and we are obligated to sethtdrtgage only if it is closed and funded. Assutg the risk we assume is conditioned
loan underwriting and market conditions in the ol mortgage market. Although loan fees and samerdst income are derived fr
mortgage loans held for sale, our largest sourdéecmime is gains from the sale of these loansérstitondary market.

We also sell pools of our consumer loans in ordamanage our concentration in consumer loans dsawdb generate liquidity. During t
three and nine months ended September 30, 201 cegnized gains from the sales of consumer loafspaf $0.7 million and $1.4 millio
respectively. We did not begin selling consumenlpaols until the second quarter of 2013 and reizegina gain of approximately $86,000
$138,000 for the three and nine months ended Ségted®, 2013.

Loan Concentration:. Loan concentrations are considered to exist where are amounts loaned to multiple borrowers @adan simila
activities that would cause them to be similarlypanted by economic or other conditions. At eaclseptember 30, 2014 and Decembe
2013, we had no concentrations of loans exceedif df total loans other than loans in the categdrsted in the table above.

I nvestment Securities

We purchase investment securities primarily to mleva source for meeting liquidity needs, with retwon investment a second
consideration. We also use investment securitiesolateral for certain deposits and other typedafrowing. Investment securities tote
$92.8 million at September 30, 2014, an increas&38.0 million, or 47.9%, from $62.8 million at Dmnber 31, 2013. Our increase
investment securities at September 30, 2014 cordparéecember 31, 2013 was primarily due to ouegstment of cash not used in
lending activities into investment securities.

The securities portfolio consists primarily of Ugbvernment agency obligations, mortgdgeked securities and municipal securities, alth
the Company also holds corporate bonds and equityahfunds. The Asset Liability Committee (“ALCO@views the investment portfolio
an ongoing basis to ensure that the investmentearto the Company’s investment policy.
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The following table shows the carrying value of aurestment securities portfolio by investment tyrel the percentage that such invest
type comprises of our entire portfolio at the damelicated (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Percentage of Percentage of
Balance Portfolio Balance Portfolio
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and
corporation: $ 7,272 784 % $ 6,182 9.85 %
Mortgage-backed securitie 60,861 65.57 37,06¢ 59.07
Obligations of state and political subdivisic 18,76¢ 20.22 14,10C 22.47
Equity mutual fund: 484 0.52 476 0.76
Corporate bond 5,427 5.85 4,92¢ 7.85
Total $ 92,812 100.0C % $ 62,752 100.0C %

The investment portfolio consists of available $ate and held to maturity securities. Held to mibtigecurities are stated at amortized «
The carrying values of the Compasyavailable for sale securities are adjusted foealized gains or losses as valuation allowanass,aa)
gains or losses are reported on an afi®rbasis as a component of other comprehensiwenacAny expected credit loss due to the inabib
collect all amounts due according to the secwsitgontractual terms is recognized as a charge stgg@mnings. Any remaining unrealized
related to other factors would be recognized ireottomprehensive income, net of taxes.

The following table sets forth the stated matusitend weighted average yields of our investment sieturities based on the amortized co
our investment portfolio as of September 30, 2@Bl4rs in thousands):

After One Year After Five Years
One Year or Less Through Five Years Through Ten Years After Ten Years
Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Held to maturity:
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and
corporation: $ - - % - - $ - - $ 3971 2.21%
Mortgagebacked securitie - - - - - - 3,62¢ 2.56%
Obligations of states and political subdivisic - - - - - - 7,371 4.33%
Available for sale: - -
Obligations of other U.S. government agencies and
corporation: - - - - 498 2.82% 2,78¢€ 2.05%
Mortgage-backed securitie - - 502 2.07%  8,02¢ 1.82% 48,68: 2.22%
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 101 1.21% 471 2.11%  5,33C 3.1¢% 5,444 3.4€%
Corporate bond - - 900 1.1% 4,517 2.2€% - -
$ 101 $ 1,873 $18,37¢ $71,88¢

The maturity of mortgage-backed securities reflscteeduled repayments based upon the contractuatities of the securities.

Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment increased $3.2 milbori,2.8%, to $27.9 million at September 30, 20bnf $24.7 million at December :
2013. Our acquisition of a parcel of land in LafgeLouisiana for a potential future branch looafithe purchase of a parcel of lan
Prairieville, Louisiana to relocate an existingrimia and the construction of a new branch in Batoodge, Louisiana that opened in the t
quarter of 2014 are the primary reasons for thisciase.

Deferred Tax Asset

At September 30, 2014, our deferred tax asset Wdsrillion compared to $1.2 million at December 2013. The deferred tax asset is du
a net operating loss acquired in the First CommuBank (“FCB”) acquisition and the nateductibility of the loan loss provision for -
purposes. The Company assesses the recoveralfility deferred tax asset quarterly, and the curesmt projected level of taxable inca
provides for the ultimate realization of the camgyivalue of its deferred tax asset.
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Deposits

The following table sets forth the composition off @eposits and the percentage of each depositttypsal deposits at September 30, 2
and December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201. December 31, 201
Percentage of Percentage of
Total Total
Amount Deposits Amount Deposits
Noninteres-bearing demand depos $ 72,61¢ 11.6€ % $ 72,795 13.67 %
NOW accountt 108,65¢ 17.4¢ 77,19C 14.4¢
Money market deposit accout 77,801 12.52 67,00¢ 12.5¢
Savings accoun 53,471 8.60 52,177 9.8C
Time deposit: 309,05¢ 49.72 263,43¢ 49.4¢€
Total deposit: $ 621,61: 100.0C % $ 532,60¢ 100.0C %

Total deposits at September 30, 2014 were $621l®mian increase of $89.0 million, or 16.7%, frdecember 31, 2013. Total noninterest
bearing demand deposits at December 31, 2013 wghtl\s inflated by a $14.0 million short term degjpmade by a commercial custome
late December 2013 that was fully withdrawn in Jagw2014. With respect to the remainder of our démgowth, the increase in total depc
was driven primarily by an increase in NOW accowit$31.5 million, or 40.8%, an increase of $13.i8iom, or 23.5%, in noninterediearin(
demand deposits after adjusting for the $14.0 omilishort term deposit, and an increase in time si&pof $45.6 million, or 17.3%, frc
December 31, 2013. We believe our deposit cro$ssategy continues to impact both nonintetestiring demand deposit and NOW acc
growth.

Our management is focused on growing and maintgiaistable source of funding, specifically coreatgys, and allowing more costly depo

to mature, within the context of mitigating intereste risk and maintaining our net interest maggid sufficient levels of liquidity. As we he
grown, our deposit mix has evolved from a primalance on certificates of deposit, which are letationship driven and less depender
the convenience of branch locations than otherstg@leposit accounts. As our branch network haseked and the reach of our relationshij
driven approach to banking has grown, our mix gbadits has shifted and is relatively balanced betwegansactional accounts, sucl
checking, savings, money market and NOW accountsgartificates of deposits.

The following table shows the maturity of certifiea of deposit and other time deposits of $10060@ore at September 30, 2014
December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201 December 31, 201
Certificates of Other Time Certificates of Other Time
Deposit Deposits Deposit Deposits
Time remaining until maturity

Three months or les $ 7,981 $ 112 $ 4,29€ $ 134
Over three months through six mon 24,074 - 5,123 102
Over six months through twelve moni 5,08¢ 233 6,45¢€ 396
Over one year through three ye 7,224 337 9,43t 302
Over three year 1,767 122 2,861 141
$ 46,13¢ $ 804 $ 28,171 $ 1,07t

Borrowings

Total borrowings include securities sold under agrents to repurchase, advances from the Federa¢ Hoan Bank (“FHLB"),a line of cred
with First National Bankers Bankshares, Inc. FNBBNBB”), and junior subordinated debentures. Securities salder agreements
repurchase increased $1.9 million to $12.1 millarSeptember 30, 2014 from $10.2 million at Decandtie 2013. Our advances from
FHLB were $38.4 million at September 30, 2014, raovease of $7.6 million, or 24.7%, from FHLB advesiof $30.8 million at December
2013. We had no funds drawn on the line of credit WNBB at September 30, 2014. The notes payadlienibe of $3.6 million at Septem
30, 2014 is comprised of the junior subordinatedea¢ures that we assumed in connection with the BERiisition. The overall increase
borrowings was used primarily to fund loan growth.
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The average balances and cost of funds of ghori-borrowings at September 30, 2014 and at Deee8th 2013 are summarized as foll
(dollars in thousands):

Average Balance: Cost of Funds
September 30, 201  December 31, 201.  September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Federal funds purchased and other short-term

borrowings $ 12,55¢ $ 19 0.50 % 0.7€ %
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 11,254 7,60¢ 0.75 0.15
Total shor-term borrowings $ 23,81C $ 7,627 0.62 % 0.15 %

Results of Operations
Performance Summary

Three months ended September 30, 2014 vs. threthsnended September 30, 2Q1Bor the three months ended September 30, 201
income was $1.4 million, or $0.20 per basic shaue $0.20 per diluted share, compared to net incoh$®.7 million, or $0.17 per basic sh
and $0.16 per diluted share, for the three monttde@ September 30, 2013. The increase in net indsrpemarily attributable to a $1
million increase in interest and fees on loans arD.9 million increase in noninterest income, eiffsy an increase in noninterest expe
Return on average assets increased to 0.75% fdhithe months ended September 30, 2014 from 0.49%hé three months ended Septer
30, 2013 due to the increase in net income. Ratoraverage equity was 5.72% for the three montbdea®eptember 30, 2014 as compar
4.86% for the three months ended September 30,.2013

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 vs. nine snentled September 30, 2(. For the nine months ended September 30, 2014nc@mne
was $3.4 million, or $0.68 per basic share and %0 diluted share, compared to net income of $8Ion, or $0.84 per basic share
$0.78 per diluted share, for the nine months erSigptember 30, 2013. The increase in net incomeaislynattributable to a $6.3 millic
increase in interest and fees on loans offset B¢.8 million increase in noninterest expense. Tlen@any issued 3,285,300 shares c
common stock as a resultité initial public offering completed in July 201%he decreases in basic earnings per share anidddgarnings p
share are directly attributable to the increasthinweighted average number of shares outstandied in the calculations. Return on ave
assets declined to 0.64% for the nine months eSgpdember 30, 2014 from 0.86% for nine months eigdember 30, 2013 due to a $2
million increase in average assets primarily atable to loan growth, the investment in infrastuwe to enter the Lafayette region in the fo
quarter of 2013, and the inclusion of a nonrecgrbargain purchase gain of $0.9 million recogniapdn the acquisition of FCB in May 20
Return on average equity was 6.34% for the ninethsoended September 30, 2014 as compared to 7@efnine months ended Septen
30, 2013. The decrease in return on average egugtyesult of a $21.5 million increase in averagaity mainly attributable to the complet
of the Company’s initial public offering.

Net I nterest Income and Net | nterest Margin

Net interest income, which is the largest compomémtur earnings, is the difference between inteeasned on assets and the cost of int-
bearing liabilities. The primary factors affectingt interest income are the volume, yield and niigwr ratesensitive assets and liabilities
well as the amount of our nonperforming loans dnadibterest rate environment.

The primary factors affecting net interest margie ehanges in interest rates, competition and hiages of the interest rate yield curve.

decline in interest rates since 2008 has put saamif downward pressure on net interest margin theepast few years. Each rate reductic
interest rate indices and, in particular, the priate, rates paid on U.S. Treasury securities laad.ondon Interbank Offering Rate, resulted
reduction in the yield on our variable rate loandeixed to one of these indices. However, ratesundeposits and other interdsgaring
liabilities did not decline proportionally. To offsthe effects on our net interest income andntetést margin from the prevailing interest
environment, we have continued to focus our integasning assets in loans and shift our intereatibg liabilities from highecosting
deposits, like certificates of deposit, to noniastrbearing and other lower cost deposits.

Three months ended September 30, 2014 vs. thretasnemded September 30, 2018et interest income increased 32.1% to $7.0 onilfior
the three months ended September 30, 2014 fromr##iBn for the same period in 2013. Net interggtrgin was 3.86% for the three mor
ended September 30, 2014, down 29 basis points &A% for the three months ended September 3(.ZDHe increase in net inter
income resulted from an increase in the volumentdrest-earning assets and a decrease in the fcipde@stbearing liabilities, offset by
decrease in the rate paid on interest-earning asset an increase in the volume of intetestring liabilities. For the three months er
September 30, 2014, average loans increased apmat@ty $178.4 million as compared to the same pand2013, while average investm
securities increased approximately $26.3 millionethe same
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comparative period, average interbsiring liabilities increased approximately $15&#ion. All of these changes were driven both by
impact of the assets acquired and liabilities agzlim connection with the FCB acquisition as welbaganic loan and deposit growth.

Interest income was $8.2 million for the three nhenénded September 30, 2014 compared to $6.2 mithiothe same period in 2013 &
result of an increase in the volume of inter@tning assets, offset by a decrease in the ratectan such assets. As the average balance
below illustrates, loan interest income made upstartially all of our interest income for the thmenths ended September 30, 2014 and :
Competitive factors and the prolonged low interas¢ environment have contributed to a lower ymhdearning assets. The overall yielc
interestearning assets decreased 37 basis points to 4 &r18bef three months ended September 30, 2014 agarethto 4.88% for the sa
period in 2013. The loan portfolio yielded 5.00% fbe three months ended September 30, 2014 asarethfo 5.41% for the three mor
ended September 30, 2013.

Interest expense was $1.2 million for the three tii@ended September 30, 2014, an increase of $ili@nncompared to interest expense
$0.9 million for the three months ended Septemifer2813, as a result of an increase in the volufriaterestbearing liabilities, offset by
decrease in cost of such liabilities. The cost riériestbearing liabilities decreased 5 basis points td%&or the three months enc
September 30, 2014 compared to the same perio@18. 2n particular, the weighted average rate paictertificates of deposit decrease
basis points during the three months ended Septedihe014 compared to same period in 2013. Theedse in deposit rates was drivet
competitive factors and the general interest ratérenment, as well as our strategy to cross-sgfigilower cost deposits.
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Average Balances and Yiel. The following table sets forth average balanaeskata, including all major categories of inteszgning asse
and interesbearing liabilities, together with the interestresd or paid and the average yield or rate paidamh such category for the th

months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013. Avepagssnted below are daily averages (dollars inshods):

Three months ended September 3

2014 2013
Interest Interest
Average Income/ Yield/ Rate Average Income/ Yield/ Rate
Balance Expense®) 1) Balance Expense®) 1)

Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Loans $619,35¢ $ 7,801 5.0C % $440,96( $ 6,01« 5.41 %
Securities

Taxable 66,715 244 1.45 43,53¢ 106 0.97

Tax-exempt 19,35¢ 123 2.52 16,18 100 2.4t
Interes-earning balances with ban 14,562 14 0.38 5,87¢ 11 0.74
Total interes-earning asset 719,98t 8,182 451 506,55¢ 6,231 4.8¢
Cash and due from ban 6,09 5,87%
Intangible asset 3,23C 3,271
Other asset 37,051 31,00¢
Allowance for loan losse (4,03%) (2,769)
Total asset $762,33( $543,95:
Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:

Interes-bearing deman $179,22¢ $ 279 0.62% $120,96¢ $ 192 0.623 %

Savings deposil 52,97: 91 0.68 48,07 85 0.7C

Time deposit: 290,87¢ 714 0.97 229,35¢ 585 1.01
Total interes-bearing deposit 523,07t 1,084 0.82 398,40z 862 0.8€
Shor-term borrowings 23,137 12 0.21 9,66¢€ 4 0.1€
Long-term debi 38,80¢ 86 0.88 24,47: 66 1.07
Total interes-bearing liabilities 585,01t 1,182 0.8C 432,54 932 0.8t
Noninteres-bearing deposit 71,444 53,27¢
Other liabilities 5,803 3,132
Stockholders' equit 100,06¢ 55,004
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $762,33( $543,95!
Net interest income/net interest mar $ 7,00C 3.86 % $ 5,29¢ 4.15 %

(1) Interest income and net interest margin are expeeas a percentage of average interest-earnints asgetanding for the indicated
periods. Interest expense is expressed as a pageeot average inter-bearing liabilities for the indicated periot

The average balances of nonaccruing assets awgl@ttin the table above.
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Volume/Rate AnalysisThe following table sets forth a summary of tiamges in interest earned and interest paid reguitom changes
volume and rates for the three months ended SepteBtlh 2014 compared to the same period in 2018a(don thousands):

Three months ended September 30, 2014 vs.
three months ended September 30, 20:

Volume Rate Net (1)

Interest income:
Loans $ 2,43z $ (646) $ 1,787
Securities

Taxable 56 82 138

Tax-exempt 20 4 24
Interes-earning balances with ban 16 (13) 3

Total interes-earning asset 2,52k (573) 1,952
Interest expense:
Interes-bearing demand depos 93 (6) 87
Savings deposil 9 3) 6
Time deposit: 157 (28) 129
Shor-term borrowings 6 3 9
Long-term debi 39 (19) 20

Total interes-bearing liabilities 304 (53) 251
Change in net interest incor $ 2,221 $ (520) $ 1,701

(M Changes in interest due to both volume and rate lmen allocated on a prata basis using the absolute ratio value of ang
calculated

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 vs. nine shentted September 30, 2C. Net interest income increased 42.6% to $19.lionilfor
the nine months ended September 30, 2014 from $aBidn for the same period in 2013. Net interesirgin was 3.85% for the nine mor
ended September 30, 2014, down 26 basis points4tf®b for the nine months ended September 30,. Zi8increase in net interest incc
resulted from an increase in the volume of inteeeshing assets and a decrease in the cost oéstteraring liabilities, offset by a decreas
the rate paid on interest-earning assets and amaase in the volume of interastaring liabilities. For the nine months ended Seyter 3(
2014, average loans increased approximately $19lbn as compared to the same period in 2013 levhverage investment securi
increased approximately $23.1 million. Over the saromparative period, average intefleséring liabilities increased approximately $1!
million. All of these changes were driven both Ihe timpact of the assets acquired and liabilitiesua®d in connection with the F
acquisition as well as organic loan and deposivgio

Interest income was $22.5 million for the nine nienénded September 30, 2014 compared to $15.@mfthr the same period in 2013 ¢
result of an increase in the volume of inteatning assets, offset by a decrease in the radeopasuch assets. As the average balances
below illustrates, loan interest income made upstariially all of our interest income for the nimenths ended September 30, 2014 and !
Competitive factors and the prolonged low interagt environment contributed to a lower yield oméaay assets. The overall yield on interes
earning assets decreased 32 basis points to 4 &b8ef nine months ended September 30, 2014 asarethpo 4.87% for the same periol
2013. The loan portfolio yielded 5.01% for the nimenths ended September 30, 2014 as compared @865fdr the nine months enc
September 30, 2013.

Interest expense was $3.4 million for the nine rhergnded September 30, 2014, an increase of $Ui@mdompared to interest expense
$2.5 million for the nine months ended September2B13, as a result of an increase in the volumiatefestbearing liabilities, offset by
decrease in the cost of such liabilities. The adsinterestbearing liabilities decreased 8 basis points td%8or the nine months enc
September 30, 2014 compared to the same perio@18. 2n particular, the weighted average rate paictertificates of deposit decrease
basis points during the nine months ended SepteBhe2014 compared to same period in 2013. Theedserin deposit rates was driver
competitive factors and the general interest ratérenment, as well as our strategy to cross-séfigilower cost deposits.
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Average Balances and Yiel. The following table sets forth average balanaeskata, including all major categories of inteszgning asse
and interesbearing liabilities, together with the interestresdt or paid and the average yield or rate paidami such category for the n
months ended September 30, 2014 and 2013. Avepagssnted below are daily averages (dollars inshods):

Nine months ended September 3!

2014 2013
Interest Interest
Average Income/ Yield/ Rate Average Income/ Yield/
Balance Expense®) 1) Balance Expense®) Rate (1)

Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Loans $576,28( $ 21,59t 5.01 % $379,76¢ $ 15,331 5.4C %
Securities

Taxable 58,77¢ 623 1.42 37,35¢ 247 0.88

Tax-exempt 16,27z 294 2.42 14,63¢ 267 2.44
Interes-earning balances with ban 11,83: 34 0.38 4,011 22 0.73
Total interes-earning asset 663,16« 22,54¢ 4.55 435,77( 15,861 4.87
Cash and due from ban 5,79C 4,69¢
Intangible asset 3,24C 3,07¢
Other asset 35,661 25,86¢
Allowance for loan losse (3,689) (2,7198)
Total asset $704,17¢ $466,69:
Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Interes-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:

Interes-bearing deman $168,30¢ $ 783 0.62% $105,21« $ 510 0.65 %

Savings deposil 52,43¢ 269 0.69 39,96¢ 208 0.7C

Time deposit: 281,82 2,08t 0.99 195,76¢ 1,56€ 1.07
Total interes-bearing deposit 502,57( 3,137 0.83 340,94¢ 2,284 0.9C
Shor-term borrowings 23,81(C 36 0.2C 6,79C 9 0.18
Long-term debi 37,07¢ 256 0.92 21,53( 165 1.02
Total interes-bearing liabilities 563,45¢ 3,42¢ 0.81 369,26¢ 2,45¢ 0.8¢
Noninteres-bearing deposit 65,08( 44,48
Other liabilities 4,157 2,90¢
Stockholders' equit 71,482 50,03¢
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $704,17¢ $466,69:
Net interest income/net interest mar $ 19,115 3.85 % $ 13,40¢ 4.11 %

@) Interest income and net interest margin are exptess a percentage of average intezasting assets outstanding for the indic
periods. Interest expense is expressed as a pageeot average inter-bearing liabilities for the indicated periot

The average balances of nonaccruing assets awgl@ttin the table above.
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Volume/Rate AnalysisThe following table sets forth a summary of tiamges in interest earned and interest paid reguitom changes
volume and rates for the nine months ended SepteBih@014 compared to the same period in 2013adaih thousands):

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 vs.
Nine months ended September 30, 20:

Volume Rate Net (1)

Interest income:
Loans $ 7,93 $ (1,669 $ 6,264
Securities

Taxable 141 234 375

Tax-exempt 30 3) 27
Interes-earning balances with ban 43 (32) 12

Total interes-earning asse! 8,147 (1,469 6,67¢
Interest expense:
Interes-bearing demand depos 306 (33) 273
Savings deposil 65 (4) 61
Time deposit: 688 (169) 5198
Shor-term borrowings 22 4 26
Long-term debt 119 (28) 91

Total interes-bearing liabilities 1,20(C (230) 970
Change in net interest incor $ 6,947 $ (1,239) $ 5,70¢

(1) Changes in interest due to both volume and rate ltmen allocated on a prata basis using the absolute ratio value of ans
calculated

Noninterest ncome

Noninterest income includes, among other thingss fgenerated from our deposit services and in abiemewith our mortgage loan activiti
securities gains, gains on sale of consumer loadsaanonrecurring bargain purchase gain resultioig the FCB acquisition in May 2013. "
expect to continue to develop new products thaegge noninterest income, and enhance our exigtioducts, in order to diversify c
revenue sources.

Three months ended September 30, 2014 vs. threthsnended September 30, 201Botal noninterest income increased $1.0 millior
91.5%, to $2.0 million for the three months endegt®mber 30, 2014 compared to $1.0 million forttiree months ended September 30, Z
This increase resulted primarily from an increals$006 million in gain on sale of consumer loand an increase of $0.2 million in gain on ¢
of real estate owned.

Gain on sale of loans is our largest componentasfimerest income for the three months ended Sdue®0, 2014. The increase of §
million, or 729.1%, to $0.7 million compared to $880 for the three months ended September 30, 2043 generated by increa
originations and sales of pools of our consumendo&@lVe expect to continue to sell pools of our oomsr loans quarterly as part of our ongt
loan portfolio management.

Service charges on deposit accounts include maintenfees on accounts, account enhancement cliargeklitional deposit account featu
per item charges and overdraft fees. Service chargadeposits increased 26.9% to $85,000 for tleetimonths ended September 30, 20:
compared to $67,000 for the same period in 2018.iftrease can be attributed to increased depesit#ting from the FCB acquisition as v
as organic deposit growth.

Fee income on mortgage loans held for sale deat¢as®0.5 million for the three months ended Sejpen80, 2014 from $0.6 million for t
same period in 2013, as originations of mortgagadoheld for sale decreased. The decrease in sadhdome, as well as our origination
mortgage loans held for sale, is due to an industdge increase in mortgage loan rates in the ldiidfrof 2013 that has continued into the t
quarter of 2014.

Other operating income was $0.3 million for theethmonths ended September 30, 2014 compared tarfilich for the same period in 20:
Other operating income consists of interchange, &M surcharge income, loan servicing fees andalencome.
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Nine months ended September 30, 2014 vs. nine snentled September 30, 2(. Total noninterest income increased $0.1 millimn3.4%, t
$4.5 million for the nine months ended September ZW4 compared to $4.4 million for the nine monérgled September 30, 20
Noninterest income for the nine months ended Sdmer80, 2013 included a $0.9 million bargain pusehgain. Excluding the barg
purchase gain, the $1.0 million increase in nom@gkeincome was mainly attributable to an increaggain on sale of consumer loans and ¢
operating income, offset by a decrease in fee ircommortgage loans held for sale.

Fee income on mortgage loans held for sale isatgest component of our noninterest income fomihe months ended September 30, 2
These fees decreased $0.7 million to $1.6 millmmtfie nine months ended September 30, 2014 fraBrélion for the same period in 20
for the same reasons as discussed above with tasptbe three months ended September 30, 2014.

The gain on the sale of loans other than mortgagesl for the nine months ended September 30, 2654%4.4 million as compared to $
million for the nine months ended September 30320he gain was generated by sales of pools otonsumer loans. We expect to conti
to sell pools of our consumer loans quarterly at@feour ongoing loan portfolio management.

Service charges on deposit accounts include maintenfees on accounts, account enhancement chiargeklitional deposit account featu
per item charges and overdraft fees. Service chargaleposits increased 44.4% to $221,000 forittemonths ended September 30, 20!
compared to $153,000 for the same period in 20h@. ificrease can be attributed to increased depesitdting from the FCB acquisition
well as organic deposit growth.

Gains on the sale of investment securities fomihe months ended September 30, 2014 decreasedn$lioh, or 33.7%, to $0.2 million fro
$0.3 million for the same period in 2013. The Compaells investment securities held as availabteséde to fund loan demand, manag
asset/liability sensitivity or for other businessposes.

Other operating income was $0.8 million for theenmonths ended September 30, 2014 compared ta#illigh for the same period in 20:
Other operating income consists of interchange, I&&M surcharge income, loan servicing fees andalencome.

Noninterest Expense

Noninterest expense includes salaries and berefitother costs associated with the conduct obparations. We are committed to mana
our costs within the framework of our operatingagtgy. However, since we are focused on growin@ baganically and through acquisiti
we expect our expenses to continue to increaseeagld employees and physical locations to accommade growing franchise.

Three months ended September 30, 2014 vs. threisnemded September 30, 20IBotal noninterest expense was $6.3 million far thre
months ended September 30, 2014, an increase bfndillion, or 21.0%, from $5.2 million for the sanperiod in 2013. This increase v
primarily a result of increased costs associateti @kpansion into the Lafayette market including tipening of our Lafayette branch in
fourth quarter of 2013, the opening of our Highld&whd branch in Baton Rouge during the third quat®014 and our organic growth.

Nine months ended September 30, 2014 vs. nine snentted September 30, 2C. Total noninterest expense was $17.4 million Far hine
months ended September 30, 2014, an increase @fdiflion, or 30.0%, from $13.4 million for the sanperiod in 2013. This increase \
primarily a result of increased costs associatath thie addition of two branches and additional eyeés upon the completion of the F
merger in the second quarter of 2013, the exparistorthe Lafayette market including the openindhef Lafayette branch in the fourth qua
of 2013, the opening of the Highland Road brancBaton Rouge during the third quarter of 2014 amdavganic growth.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense for the three months ended Bbepte30, 2014 was $0.7 million, an increase of $dillon from $0.3 million for the thre
months ended September 30, 2013. The effectiveat@xfor the three months ending September 30, 2042013 was 32.6% and 32..
respectively.

Income tax expense for the nine months ended Séeted?, 2014 was $1.6 million, an increase of $0ilion from $1.1 million for the nin
months ended September 30, 2013. The effectiveaisxfor the nine months ending September 30, 20142013 was 32.6% and 26.:
respectively.

Risk Management

The primary risks associated with our operatioescaedit, interest rate and liquidity risk. Crealiid interest rate risk are discussed below, \
liquidity risk is discussed in this section undee headind.iquidity and Capital Resourcdmlow.
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Credit Risk and the Allowance for Loan Losses

General. The risk of loss should a borrower default oranl is inherent in any lending activity. Our politioand related credit risk ¢
monitored and managed on an ongoing basis by skimmanagement department, the board of directoasi committee and the full board
directors. We utilize a ten point riskting system, which assigns a risk grade to eactoter based on a number of quantitative and sk
factors associated with a loan transaction. THe gimde categorizes the loan into one of five dakegories, based on information abou
ability of borrowers to service the debt. The imi@tion includes, among other factors, current fom@ninformation about the borrow
historical payment experience, credit documentatpublic information and current economic trendeede categories assist manageme
monitoring our credit quality. The following dednes each of the risk categories, which are comsistéh the definitions used in guidat
promulgated by federal banking regulators:

. Pass (Loan grades-6) — Loans not meeting the criteria below are considgass. These loans have high credit characterstic
financial strength. The borrowers at least genegpatéits and cash flow that are in line with peadandustry standards and h
debt service coverage ratios above loan covenawt®ar policy guidelines. For some of these loangyaranty from a financia
capable party mitigates characteristics of thedwoer that might otherwise result in a lower gre

. Special Mention (grade A Loans classified as Special Mention possess soatit deficiencies that need to be corrected tod
a greater risk of default in the future. For exaefinancial ratios relating to the borrower mayéaleteriorated. Often, a spe
mention categorization is temporary while certeawtbrs are analyzed or matters addressed beforaheis recategorized ¢
either Pass or Substanda

. Substandard (grade 8) Loans rated as Substandard are inadequately pedtbgtthe current net worth and paying capacitthe
borrower or the liquidation value of any collaterdldeficiencies are not addressed, it is likdigttthis category of loan will res
in the Bank incurring a loss. Where a borrower beesn unable to adjust to industry or general ecamoonditions, the borrowes’
loan is often categorized as Substand

. Doubtful (grade 9— Doubtful loans are Substandard loans with one aermadditional negative factors that makes full ection o
amounts outstanding, either through repaymentaidation of collateral, highly questionable angnobable

. Loss (grade 10— Loans classified as Loss have deteriorated to aymdint that it is not practicable to defer writioff the loan. Fc
these loans, all efforts to remediate the lsarégative characteristics have failed and theevafuhe collateral, if any, has seve
deteriorated relative to the amount outstandingh@®lgh some value may be recovered on such a ib@hnot significant il
relation to the amount borrowe

At September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there no loans classified as Doubtful or Loss, wlitilere were $4.8 million and $:
million of loans classified as Substandard at Saptr 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectiaglg, $0.6 million and $1.2 millio
respectively, of loans classified as Special Ments of such dates. Of the $5.4 million in totab&andard and Special Mention loan
September 30, 2014, $4.3 million were acquiredhim ECB acquisition and marked to fair value attthee of their acquisition, while $4
million of the $5.4 million of total SubstandarddaSpecial Mention loans at December 31, 2013 weqeiieed in the FCB acquisition &
marked to fair value.

An external loan review consultant is engaged alybg the risk management department to reviewagmately 40% of commercial loal
utilizing a riskbased approach designed to maximize the effectbgenkthe review. In addition, credit analysts péidally review smalle
dollar commercial loans to identify negative finahdrends related to any one borrower, any relgpedips of borrowers or an industry.
collateral dependent loans, new appraisals aranastaon an annual basis. All loans not categoraedPass are put on an internal watch
with quarterly reports to the board of directorsatdition, a written status report is maintaingdbr special assets division for all commel
loans categorized as Substandard or worse. Wéhissafiormation in connection with our collectioffagts.

If our collection efforts are unsuccessful, colfatesecuring loans may be repossessed and soldrdoans secured by real estate, foreclc
proceedings initiated. The collateral is sold abljguauction for fair market value (based upon reéapraisals), with fees associated witr
foreclosure being deducted from the sales price. gurchase price is applied to the outstanding lzdance. If the loan balance is greater
the sales proceeds, the deficient balance is ctiatie

Allowance for Loan Losse. The allowance for loan losses is an amount thretagement believes will be adequate to absorb pletasse
inherent in the entire loan portfolio. The apprapezilevel of the allowance is based on an ongoadyais of the loan portfolio and represt
an amount that management deems adequate to primvideherent losses, including collective impaimh@s recognized under ASC 4
Contingencies Collective impairment is calculated based on $ogrouped by grade. Another component of the alhme&ds losses on log
assessed as impaired under ASC Réceivables The balance of these loans and their relatedvahce is included in management’
estimation and analysis of the allowance for lamsés. Other considerations in establishing
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the allowance for loan losses include the natutkvartume of the loan portfolio, overall portfoliaug]ity, historical loan loss, review of spec
problem loans and current economic conditions ey affect our borrowersbility to pay, as well as trends within each adgé factors. Tt
allowance for loan losses is established after tifpam management as well as our risk managemeparttaent and our special as:
committee. We evaluate the adequacy of the alloedmcloan losses on a quarterly basis. This evaluas inherently subjective as it requi
estimates that are susceptible to significant rewisas more information becomes available. Thenallce for loan losses was $4.3 milliol
September 30, 2014, an increase from $3.4 millidbexcember 31, 2013, as we increased our loarplasdsioning to reflect our organic lo
growth.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuirdarmation and events, it is probable that wd & unable to collect the schedu
payments of principal and interest when due acogrth the contractual terms of the loan agreenidsiermination of impairment is treated
same across all classes of loans. Impairment isuned on a loan-bipan basis for, among others, all loans of $500@0@§reater, nonaccrt
loans and a sample of loans between $250,0(D8,800. When we identify a loan as impaired, wasnoee the extent of the impairment b
on the present value of expected future cash flolegounted at the loam'effective interest rate, except when the solmdiring) source «
repayment for the loans is the operation or ligticaof the collateral. In these cases when formale is probable, we use the current fair v
of the collateral, less selling costs, instead is€a@unted cash flows. For real estate collateha,fair value of the collateral is based up:
recent appraisal by a qualified and licensed appralf we determine that the value of the impalgeth is less than the recorded investme
the loan (net of previous chargéfs, deferred loan fees or costs and unamortizethjum or discount), we recognize impairment thioag
allowance estimate or a charg#+ecorded against the allowance. When the uléntallectability of the total principal of an imipad loan is il
doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual, all paymergsapplied to principal, under the cost recoverghoé. When the ultimate collectability
the total principal of an impaired loan is not iouttt and the loan is on nonaccrual, contractuarést is credited to interest income w
received, under the cash basis method.

Impaired loans at September 30, 2014 were $4.8omijlincluding impaired loans acquired in the FC&jasition in the amount of $£
million, and $4.2 million, including impaired loam&quired in the FCB acquisition in the amount 8f8$million, at December 31, 2013.
September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, $75/aD&27,000, respectively, of the allowance for It@sses was specifically allocatec
impaired loans.

The provision for loan losses is a charge to incoman amount that management believes is necessargintain an adequate allowance for
losses. The provision is based on managemeatjular evaluation of current economic conditionsur specific markets as well as regionally
nationally, changes in the character and size efldlan portfolio, underlying collateral values s@og loans, and other factors which des
recognition in estimating loan losses. For theghr®nths ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, thisiprofor loan losses was $0.5 million i
$0.1 million, respectively. For the nine monthsesh@eptember 30, 2014, the provision for loan bases $1.2 million, an increase of $0.9 mil
from $0.3 million during the same period in 2018€Tincreases over both periods are due primaritheooverall growth in our loan portfol
including our commercial real estate loans.

Acquired loans that are accounted for under ASG3ELQoans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality were marked 1
market on the date we acquired the loans to vallnésh, in managemerst’opinion, reflected the estimated future cash $ldwased on the fa
and circumstances surrounding each respectivedb#ire date of acquisition. Acquired FCB loans hazhrrying value of $78.4 million ant
fair value of $77.5 million on the acquisition dawe continually monitor these loans as part of warmal credit review and monitori
procedures for changes in the estimated future ftasls. Because ASC 3180 does not permit carry over or recognition ofalowance fo
loan losses, we may be required to reserve foetlmms in the allowance for loan losses throughréuprovision for loan losses if future ¢
flows deteriorate below initial projections. Thevas no provision for loan losses charged to opagagkpense attributable to loans accou
for under ASC 310-30 for the three and nine moetided September 30, 2014 and 2013.

The following table presents the allocation of #tilewance for loan losses by loan category at titeslindicated (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Mortgage loans on real esta

Construction and developme $ 581 $ 420

1-4 family 742 567

Multifamily 114 101

Farmland 11 4

Nonfarm, nonresidenti: 1,79C 992
Commercial and industrii 284 397
Consume 806 899

Total $ 4,32¢ $ 3,38(
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The following table presents the amount of thevedlnce for loan losses allocated to each loan categ®a percentage of total loans at

dates indicated:

Mortgage loans on real esta
Construction and developme
1-4 Family
Multifamily
Farmland
Nonfarm, nonresidenti:

Commercial and industrii

Consume
Total

September 30, 201

0.08
0.13
0.02

0.31
0.05
0.14

0.74

December 31, 201

%

0.08 %
0.11
0.02

0.2C
0.08
0.18

%

0.67 %

As discussed above, the balance in the allowanckém losses is principally influenced by the psan for loan losses and by net loan
experience. Additions to the allowance are chargethe provision for loan losses. Losses are chliatgethe allowance as incurred
recoveries on losses previously charged to thevalhge are credited to the allowance at the timevexy is collected. The table below refle
the activity in the allowance for loan losses fog periods indicated (dollars in thousands):

Allowance at beginning of peric
Provision for loan losse
Chargeoffs:
Mortgage loans on real esta
Construction and developme
1-4 Family
Multifamily
Farmland
Nonfarm, nonresidenti
Commercial and industrii
Consumel
Total charg-offs
Recoveries
Mortgage loans on real esta
Construction and developme
1-4 Family
Multifamily
Farmland
Nonfarm, nonresidenti:
Commercial and industrii
Consumel
Total recoverie!
Net charg-offs
Balance at end of peric

Net charg-offs to:
Loans- average
Allowance for loan losse
Allowance for loan losses t
Total loans
Nonperforming loan

Three months ended September 3(

Nine months ended September 3!

2014 2013 2014 2013
3882 $ 2,76C $ 338C $ 2,722
505 108 1,19¢ 340
(35) 9 (65) -
- - (3) -
- 1 (16) (118)
(68) (73) (237) (145)
(103) (63) (321) (263)
- - 1 -
1 1 2 2
1 - 1 -
16 - 16 -
26 6 51 11
44 7 71 13
(59) (56) (250) (250)
4326 $ 281 $ 4326 3 2,812
0.01% 0.01% 0.04% 0.06%
1.36% 1.99% 5.76% 8.8%%
0.74% 0.63% 0.74% 0.62%
296.01% 138.3(% 296.01% 138.3(%

The allowance for loan losses to total loans rat@reased to 0.74% at September 30, 2014 compar@db8% at September 30, 2013.
allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loatie iacreased to 296.01% at September 30, 2014 #88130% at September 30, 2013.
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Charge-offs reflect the realization of losses ia plortfolio that were recognized previously throtigé provision for loan losses. Net chaafés
for the three and nine months ended September G4 2vere $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectiveéqual to 0.01% and 0.04
respectively, of our average loan balance as dfi siates. Net chargaffs for the three and nine months ended Septe@®e2013 were $0
million and $0.3 million, respectively, equal td0% and 0.06%, respectively, of our average lodanige as of such dates. For the three
nine months ended September 30, 2014 and Septe&d@h@013, the majority of our charge-offs were eoner loans. Net charg#fs of oul
consumer loans as a percentage of average consoamsrfor the three and nine months ended Septedih&014 were 0.04% and 0.12%
both periods, while net chargdfs of our consumer loans as a percentage of geecansumer loans for the three and nine monthec
September 30, 2013 were 0.06% and 0.12%, respbctiMerough September 30, 2014, we have chargedrofiggregate of $95,000 of lo
that we acquired in connection with our FCB acdiaisi

Management believes the allowance for loan losse&ptember 30, 2014 is sufficient to provide adgprotection against losses in
portfolio. Although the allowance for loan lossaesconsidered adequate by management, there can hesarance that this allowance
prove to be adequate over time to cover ultimagsde in connection with our loans. This allowan@y mrove to be inadequate due
unanticipated adverse changes in the economy oretiisevents adversely affecting specific custornelisdustries. Our results of operati
and financial condition could be materially, adetysaffected to the extent that the allowance s$sifficient to cover such changes or events.

Nonperforming Assets and Restructured La. Nonperforming assets consist of nonperformingiéoand real estate owned. Nonperforr
loans are those on which the accrual of interestdtapped or loans which are contractually 90 gma due on which interest continue
accrue. Loans are ordinarily placed on nonaccrdarnva loan is specifically determined to be imphiog when principal and interesi
delinquent for 90 days or more. However, managenmayt elect to continue the accrual when the estichatt available value of collatera
sufficient to cover the principal balance and aedrinterest. It is our policy to discontinue theraal of interest income on any loan for wt
we have reasonable doubt as to the payment ofstter principal. Nonaccrual loans are returneddtrual status when the financial posi
of the borrower indicates there is no longer amgomable doubt as to the payment of principal terdast.

Another category of assets which contributes toapedit risk is troubled debt restructurings, astrectured loans. A restructured loan is a
for which a not-insignificant concession has bemmted to the borrower due to a deterioration eftibhrrowers financial condition and whis
is performing in accordance with the new terms.hSooncessions may include reduction in intereststatleferral of interest or princi
payments, principal forgiveness and other actiotiended to minimize the economic loss and to avoidclosure or repossession of
collateral. We strive to identify borrowers in fim@al difficulty early and work with them to moditp more affordable terms before such

reaches nonaccrual status. In evaluating whethezstoucture a loan, management analyzes thetlmg{financial condition of the borrow
including guarantor and collateral support, to datee whether the proposed concessions will ine¢ls likelihood of repayment of princi|
and interest. Restructured loans that are not peifigg in accordance with their restructured termg that are either contractually 90 days
due or placed on nonaccrual status are reportedrggerforming loans.

All of our restructured loans, consisting of seeeedits, were acquired from FCB. All seven credigse considered restructured loans due
modification of term through adjustments to maguris of September 30, 2014, there have been nsesulent defaults on our restructt
loans.

The following table shows the principal amountsiohperforming and restructured loans as of Septe8M®e2014 and December 31, 2013.
loans where information exists about possible ¢trediblems that would cause us to have serioustd@limut the borrowes’ability to compl:
with the current repayment terms of the loan haaentreflected in the table below (dollars in thaows:

September 30, 201. December 31, 2013
Nonaccrual loan $ 146z $ 1,48¢
Accruing loans past due 90 days or m - -
Total nonperforming loan 1,462 1,48¢
Restructured loar 903 815
Total nonperforming and restructured loi $ 2,365 $ 2,304
Interest income recognized on nonaccruing anduetstred loan: 56 100
Interest income foregone on nonaccruing and retstrexd loans 98 281

Of our total nonaccrual loans at September 30, 20i1December 31, 2013, $0.7 million and $1.2 omllirespectively, were acquired in
FCB acquisition. Nonperforming loans outstandingresented 0.25% of total loans at September 304.28@nperforming loans other tt
those acquired through an acquisition represente2P® and nonperforming acquired loans
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represented 0.12% of total loans at such date. &léoqming loans outstanding, including acquirecngarepresented 0.30% of total loan
December 31, 2013.

Real Estate Owne(Real estate owned consists of properties acqumedigh foreclosure or acceptance of a deed indfdoreclosure. The:
properties are carried at the lower of cost or fizéirket value based on appraised value less estinsatling costs. Losses arising at the tin
foreclosure of properties are charged against itbevance for loan losses. Real estate owned witbsd basis of $0.5 million and $1.0 mill
was sold during the three and nine months endetef®é&er 30, 2014, respectively, resulting in a rah @f $0.2 for the periods. For the tr
and nine months ended September 30, 2013, re&t esteed with a cost basis of $48,000 and $0.6anillvas sold resulting in a net gair
$6,000 and $0.1 million for the respective period.

At September 30, 2014, $1.4 million of our reabé&stowned was related to our acquisition of FCB garad to $1.6 million at December
2013. In connection with our acquisition of FCBe tBank agreed to share with the former FCB shadehslthe proceeds that we receiv
connection with the sale of one piece of propextyich had a carrying value and a fair market valti$600,000 and $637,000 as of Septet
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Utldsrarrangement, if this property is sold withiour years of the closing date of
acquisition of FCB, then we are entitled to rethie first $714,000 of the sale proceeds plus anuatoecessary to cover our selling expel
with the remaining proceeds, if any, to be paidaioner FCB shareholders. After the fourth anniversa the closing date, which is May
2017, we are entitled to retain all sales procesiding upon the sale of this property.

The following table provides details of our realads owned as of the dates indicated (dollarsonshnds):

September 30, 201 December 31, 201.
Construction and developme $ 2,322 $ 2,358
1-4 Family 644 812
Multifamily - 350
Nonfarm, nonresidenti: - -
Total real estate own: $ 2966 $ 3,51k

Changes in real estate owned were as follows fop#riods presented (dollars in thousands):

Nine months endec Year ended

September 30, 2014 December 31, 2013
Balance, beginning of peric $ 3,51t % 2,27¢
Transfers from loan - 465
Transfers from acquired loa 706 822
Acquired real estate ownt - 1,71¢
Sales of real estate own (1,0479) (1,64%)
Write-downs (208) (121)
Balance, end of peric $ 2,966 $ 3,61¢

Interest Rate Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changemarket prices and rates. Since the majoritgusfassets and liabilities are monetat
nature, our market risk arises primarily from iefgrrate risk inherent in our lending and deptadithg activities. A sudden and substal
change in interest rates may adversely impact aumiggs and profitability because the interestgdierne by assets and liabilities do
change at the same speed, to the same extenttbe @ame basis. Accordingly, our ability to proasly structure the volume and mix of
assets and liabilities to address anticipated obmiginterest rates, as well as to react quiaklguch fluctuations, can significantly impact
financial results. To that end, management actiweyitors and manages our interest rate risk exposu

The Asset Liability Committee has been authorizgdthe board of directors to implement our assdilitg management policy, whi
establishes guidelines with respect to our exposuirgterest rate fluctuations, liquidity, loan lisyas a percentage of funding sources, exp
to correspondent banks and brokers and relianewpiore deposits. The goal of the policy is to enaisléo maximize our interest income
maintain our net interest margin without exposing Bank to excessive interest rate risk, credit aisd liquidity risk. Within that framewor
the ALCO monitors our interest rate sensitivity andkes decisions relating to our asset/liabilitpnposition.

43




We monitor the impact of changes in interest ratesur net interest income using gap analysis.géperepresents the net position of our a
and liabilities subject to repricing in specifiethé periods. During any given time period, if thaaunt of ratesensitive liabilities exceeds 1
amount of ratesensitive assets, a financial institution would eyafly be considered to have a negative gap paséia would benefit fro
falling rates over that period of time. Conversealfinancial institution with a positive gap positiwould generally benefit from rising rates.

Within the gap position that management directsattempt to structure our assets and liabilitiesitoimize the risk of either a rising or falli
interest rate environment. We manage our gap paditir time horizons of one month, two months, ¢hmeonths, 4-6 months, 7-12 months, 12
24 months, 25-36 months, B0-months and more than 60 months. The goal oasset/liability management is for the Bank to maima ne
interest income at risk in an up or down 100 bpsist environment at less than (5)%. At Septemie2B14 and December 31, 2013 the E
was within the policy guidelines.

The following table depicts the estimated impactnen interest income of immediate changes in isterates at the specified levels for
period presented:

Nine months ended September 30, 20:

Estimated
Changes in Interest Rates Increase/Decrease in
(in basis points) Net Interest Income(®)
+400 (10.26)%
+300 (7.30)%
+200 (4.00%
+100 (2.200%
-100 1.1C%
-200 (2.4)%
-300 (6.35)%

() The percentage change in this column represenisrdjected net interest income for 12 months olaiabfalance sheet in a stable inte
rate environment versus the projected net intémesme in the various rate scenari

The computation of the prospective effects of higptital interest rate changes requires numerousrggmns regarding characteristics of |
business and the behavior of existing positionses€hbusiness assumptions are based upon our exgerigsusiness plans and publis
industry experience. Key assumptions include gsssgayment speeds, competitive factors, the relginice sensitivity of certain assets
liabilities and the expected life of nanaturity deposits. However, there are a numberaofofs that influence the effect of interest
fluctuations on us which are difficult to measurel predict. For example, a rapid drop in interagts might cause our loans to repay at a
rapid pace and certain mortgaggated investments to prepay more quickly tharegted. This could mitigate some of the benefitsatifng
rates as are expected when we are in a negatijaglged position. Conversely, a rapid rise in rategd give us an opportunity to increase
margins and stifle the rate of repayment on ourtgagrerelated loans which would increase our returnsaAssult, because these assump
are inherently uncertain, actual results will diffieom simulated results.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity . Liquidity is a measure of the ability to fund loaommitments and meet deposit maturities and withdigin a timely and cost-
effective way. Cash flow requirements can be megégerating net income, attracting new depositayexing assets to cash or borrow
funds. While maturities and scheduled amortizatibloans and securities are predictable sourcésnafs, deposit outflows, loan prepayme
loan sales and borrowings are greatly influenceddyeral interest rates, economic conditions ardctimpetitive environment in which
operate. To minimize funding risks, we closely ntoniour liquidity position through periodic reviewed maturity profiles, yield and re
behaviors, and loan and deposit forecasts. Ex¢estterm liquidity is usually invested in overnigkederal funds sold.

Our core deposits, which are deposits excluding titaposits greater than $250,000 and deposits oicipalities and other political entitic
are our most stable source of liquidity to meeteash flow needs due to the nature of the ltang: relationships generally established with
customers. Maintaining the ability to acquire th&s®ds as needed in a variety of markets, and wigiCO compliance targets, is essentit
ensuring our liquidity. At September 30, 2014 aret@mber 31, 2013, 79.1% and 82.2% of our totaltssmespectively, were funded by ¢
deposits.

Our investment portfolio is another alternative foeeting our cash flow requirements. Investmentisées generate cash flow throt
principal payments and maturities, and they gehehalve readily available markets that allow fogithconversion to cash. Some securitie:
pledged to secure certain deposit types or short-b®rrowings (such as FHLB advances), which impé&atir
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liquidity. At September 30, 2014, securities witkearying value of $70.6 million were pledged tew® deposits or borrowings, compare
$41.7 million in pledged securities as of DecenBier2013.

Other sources available for meeting liquidity ne@ddude advances from the FHLB, repurchase agratsmend other borrowings. FHI
advances are primarily used to mafahd fixed rate loans in order to minimize intereste risk and also may be used to meet day ti
liquidity needs, particularly if the prevailing arest rate on an FHLB advance compares favoralilyetoates that we would be required to
to attract deposits. At September 30, 2014, tharza of our outstanding advances with the FHLB $&&4 million, an increase from $3
million at December 31, 2013. The total amounth# temaining credit available to us from the FHLUBSaptember 30, 2014 was $2:2
million. Repurchase agreements are contracts frstie of securities which we own with a corresfamégreement to repurchase tt
securities at an agreed upon price and date. Qigiglimit the use of repurchase agreements ¢sdhcollateralized by U.S. Treasury

agency securities. We had $12.1 million of repusehagreements outstanding as of September 30, 20idpared to $10.2 million

outstanding repurchase agreements as DecembeB33, Binally, we maintain lines of credit with otheommercial banks totaling $3.
million. One line of credit, in the amount of $5rdllion, is secured by all of the stock of the Banlkhile the other lines of credit are unsect
uncommitted lines of credit. The lines of credittara at various times within the next twelve months

Our liquidity strategy is focused on using the teasstly funds available to us in the context of balance sheet composition and interest
risk position. Accordingly, we target growth of rioterestbearing deposits. Although we cannot directly cointhe types of depo:
instruments our customers choose, we can influémege choices with the interest rates and deppsitials we offer. We do not hold ¢
brokered deposits, as defined for federal reguwapurrposes, although we do hold QwikRétdeposits which we obtain via the interne
address liquidity needs when rates on such depasitpare favorably with deposit rates in our mazkét September 30, 2014, we held $!
million of QwikRate® deposits, an increase from $54.3 million at Decer3tie2013.

The following tables presents, by type, our fundsegrces, which consist of total average deposttisbmrrowed funds, as a percentage of
funds and the total cost of each funding sourcehferthree and nine months ended September 30,2@12013:

Cost of Funds
Three months ended

Cost of Funds
Nine months ended

Percentage of Total
Three months ended

Percentage of Total
Nine months ended

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Noninteres-bearing deman 108% 11.C% - % -% 104% 10.8% -% -%
Interes-bearing deman 27.3 24.9 0.6 0.6 26.8 25.4 0.6 0.6
Savings 8.1 9.9 0.7 0.7 8.3 9.7 0.7 0.7
Time deposit: 44.3 47.2 1.0 1.0 44.8 47.3 1.0 1.1
Shor-term borrowings 3.5 2.0 0.2 0.2 3.8 1.6 0.2 0.2
Borrowed funds 5.9 5.0 0.9 1.1 5.9 5.2 0.9 1.0

Total deposits and borrowed fun 100.C% 100.C % 3.4% 3.6% 100.C% 100.C % 3.4 % 3.6 %

Capital ManagementOur primary sources of capital include retainathangs, capital obtained through acquisitions pirmteeds from the si
of our capital stock. We are subject to variousutemry capital requirements administered by théeffal Reserve and the FDIC which spe
capital tiers, including the following classificatis:

Capital Tiers

Tier 1 Capital to
Average Assets
(Leverage)

Tier 1 Capital to
Risk-Weighted
Assets

Total Capital to
Risk-Weighted
Assets

Well capitalizec

Adequately capitalize
Undercapitalizec
Significantly undercapitalize
Critically undercapitalize:
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5% or above
4% or above
Less than 49
Less than 3%

6% or above
4% or above
Less than 49
Less than 39
2% or less

10% or above
8% or above
Less than 89
Less than 69




The Company and the Bank each were in complianttealiliregulatory capital requirements as of Sefen80, 2014 and December 31, 2
The Bank also was considered “well-capitalized” emthe FDICS prompt corrective action regulations as of althefse dates. The followi
table presents the actual capital amounts and atagyl capital ratios for the Company and the Baskofthe dates presented (dollar

thousands):

Minimum Capital
Requirement to be

Actual Well Capitalized

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
September 30, 2014
Investar Holding Corporation:
Tier 1 capital to average assets (lever: $ 102,37¢ 13.52% - -
Tier 1 capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 102,37¢ 15.7¢% - -
Total capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 106,707 16.42% - -
Investar Bank:
Tier 1 capital to average assets (lever: $ 68,33 9.04% $ 37,811 5.00%
Tier 1 capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 68,33 10.52% $ 38,92¢ 6.00%
Total capital to ris-weighted assei $ 72,66¢ 11.2(% $ 64,88( 10.0(%
December 31, 2013
Investar Holding Corporation:
Tier 1 capital to average assets (lever: $ 56,05¢ 9.53% - -
Tier 1 capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 56,05¢ 10.85% - -
Total capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 59,43¢ 11.51% - -
Investar Bank:
Tier 1 capital to average assets (lever: $ 55,89¢ 9.50% $ 29,42 5.00%
Tier 1 capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 55,894 10.83% $ 31,174 6.00%
Total capital to ris-weighted asse! $ 59,27 11.48% $ 51,957 10.0(%

Off-Balance Sheet Transactions

The Bank entered into a forward starting interatg swap contract to manage exposure against tlabiiy in the expected future cash flows
(future interest payments) attributable to changeke 1 month LIBOR associated with the forecagedances of 1 month fixed rate debt
arising from a rollover strategy. The maximum léngt time over which the Bank is currently hedgitsgexposure to the variability in future

cash flows for forecasted transactionfiVe years. The total notional amount of the derivatigatract is $10.0 million.

The Bank enters into loan commitments and stanettgrk of credit in the normal course of its busiad.oan commitments are made to r
the financing needs of our customers, while stardtigrs of credit commit the Bank to make paymemsehalf of customers when cer
specified future events occur. The credit riskeisdéed with loan commitments and standby lettérsredit are essentially the same as t
involved in making loans to our customers. Accogliin our normal credit policies apply to these agaments. Collateral (e.g., securil
receivables, inventory, equipment, etc.) is obthibased on management’s credit assessment of skenwer.

Loan commitments and standby letters of credit donecessarily represent future cash requirementbat while the customer typically f
the ability to draw upon these commitments at amg tthese commitments often expire without beiraywh upon in full or at all. Virtually €
of our standby letters of credit expire within gremr. Our unfunded loan commitments and standbsriedf credit outstanding were as follc
at the dates indicated (dollars in thousands):

September 30, 201 December 31, 201

Commitments to extend credit:
Loan commitment $ 93,407 $ 66,69¢
Standby letters of crec 536 421
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The Company closely monitors the amount of remagifitture commitments to borrowers in light of priéimg economic conditions and adju
these commitments as necessary. The Company wifince this process as new commitments are entet@dr existing commitments are
renewed.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2014 anithdoyear ended December 31, 2013, we engaged offibalance sheet transacti
reasonably likely to have a material effect onfiancial condition, results of operations or céstws.

Contractual Obligations

There have been no material changes outside thieaoydcourse of business in the contractual olibigat set forth in the table of contract
obligations as of December 31, 2013 contained irRagistration Statement on Form S-1.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures abut Market Risk

Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about marisk as of December 31, 2013 are set forth @mGompanys Registration Statement
Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 16, 2014, andsaguently amended. There have been no materiajehan the Company’market ris
since December 31, 2013. Please refer to the irgfom in Item 2, ManagemestDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionl &esult
of Operations, under the heading “Risk-Managemetarést Rate Risk” for additional information abtwt Company’s market risk.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Based on their evaluation as of the end of theopderovered by this quarterly report on Form 10+@, €ompanys Principal Executive Offic
and Principal Financial Officer have concluded that disclosure controls and procedures (as defimélles 13a-15(e) and 13d(e) unde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedgféective for ensuring that information the Compés required to disclose in the rep
that it files or submits under the Securities Exgd®Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processatmarized and reported within the t
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@igsion’s rules and forms. There were no changéise Companyg internal control o
financial reporting during the fiscal quarter caeiby this quarterly report that have materialfigetied, or are reasonably likely to materi
affect, the Company’s internal control over finaiceporting.
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PART Il. OTHER INFORMATION

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes from the aistorfs previously disclosed in the Registratiornte®teent on Form 3-filed by Investe
Holding Corporation (the “Company”) with the Seti@s and Exchange Commission (the “SE@4i)May 16, 2014, and subsequently amer

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities andse of Proceeds

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities
None.

Use of Proceeds

On June 30, 2014, the Company’s Registration Stateon Form S-1 (File No. 3386014), which related to our initial public offeg, was declare
effective by the SEC. Pursuant to that registrastatement, we registered the offer and sale ¢d 3;306,250 shares of our common stock, $1.C
value per share, at a price to the public of $14€0share (for an aggregate offering price of $48illion). The offering commenced on June
2014, and we sold an aggregate of 3,285,300 sbhms common stock (which includes 410,300 shaots pursuant to the underwritemirchas
option). Upon completion of the sale of our commtwtk referred to in the preceding sentence, dgtislipublic offering terminated. Sandler [@gill
& Partners, L.P. and Sterne, Agee & Leach, Inaezsbrs underwriters for the offering. The Compaueived net proceeds of $41.6 million from
sale of such shares (the “Net Proceeadff8r deducting approximately $3.0 million in ungeting commissions and approximately $1.4 millio
offering expenses payable by the Company (noneaf expenses were payable to our affiliates, officdirectors or their associates or to pel
owning 10% or more of our common stock). There thgen no material change in the planned use of gdscigom our initial public offering

described in the Comparsyfinal prospectus filed with the SEC on July 112@ursuant to Rule 424(b). As described in thal fprospectus, tl
Company used approximately $5.0 million of the Rieiceeds to repay in full amounts outstanding utide€ompany’s line of credit.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides the information witkspect to purchases made by the Company of shiaitsscommon stock during each of
months during the three month period ended Septe8the014:

(c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number (or
(b) Average of Shares (or Units) Approximate Dollar
(a) Total Price Purchased as Part Value) of Shares (or
Number of Paid per Share of Publicly Units) That May Be
Shares (or Units) (or Announced Plans Purchased Under the
Period Purchased® Unit) or Programs Plans or Programs
July 1, 2014 to July 31, 20: 1,127.9: $ 14.6: - $ =
August 1, 2014 to August 31, 20 - - - -
September 1, 2014 to September 30, 2 160.0(C 13.52 - -
1,287.9: $ 14.4¢ - $ -

(@) Represents shares surrendered to cover the ptaxedl due upon the vesting of restricted st

The Companys ability to pay dividends to its shareholders rbaylimited on account of the junior subordinatetetgures that the Compe
assumed in connection with its acquisition of F€simmunity Bank, which are senior to shares ofGbenpanys common stock. The Comps
must make payments on the junior subordinated detsnbefore any dividends can be paid on its comstmck.

In addition, the Company’s status as a bank holdomgpany affects its ability to pay dividends,wotways:

. As a holding company with no material businessviids, the Company' ability to pay dividends is substantially depertdgpor
the ability of Investar Bank to transfer fundsthe Company in the form of dividends, loans and adea. Investar Ban&’ability tc
pay dividends and make other distributions and mamis itself subject to various legal, regulatanygl other restriction:

. As a holding company of a bank, the Companyayment of dividends must comply with the poBcaéand enforcement powers
the Federal Reserve. Under Federal Reserve polinigeneral a bank holding company should paydénds only when (1) its r
income available to shareholders over the last fuarters (net of dividends paid) has been sufficie fully fund the dividend
(2) the prospective rate of earnings retention appéo be consistent with the capital needs andativeurrent and prospecti
financial condition of the bank holding company dtsl subsidiaries and (3) the bank holding compeiil) continue to mee
minimum regulatory capital adequacy rati
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibi
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Exchange dated August 1,,26¢3and between Investar Holding Corporation ameestar Bank, ¢

amende®

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of Investar HotfiCorporatior®

3.2 By-laws of Investar Holding Corporation, as amen®

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificd®
10.1 Amendment No. 1 to the Investar Holding Corporai®i4 Lon-Term Incentive Compensation PI®)
31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officels eequired pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officers aequired pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officers eequired pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officers aequired pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS  XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh

@ Filed as exhibit 2.1 to the Registration Statemmmtorm Si of the Company filed with the SEC on May 16, 2@ incorporate

herein by referenct
@ Filed as exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statenmmt-orm Si of the Company filed with the SEC on May 16, 2@h# incorporate

herein by referenct

®  Filed as exhibit 3.2 to the Pre-Effective Amendmisot 1 to Registration Statement on Formk 8f the Company filed with the SEC
June 4, 2014 and incorporated herein by refere

®  Filed as exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statemmmt-orm Si of the Company filed with the SEC on May 16, 2@ incorporate

herein by referenct
®  Filed as exhibit 99.2 to the Registration StatenmenForm S8 of the Company filed with the SEC on October 3M.4 and incorporat:
herein by referenct

The Company does not have any ldagn debt instruments under which securities atbaaized exceeding 10% of the total assets ¢
Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidatedsb@ke Company will furnish to the Securities axditange Commission, upon its reque
copy of all long-term debt instruments.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causiedréiport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INVESTAR HOLDING CORPORATION

Date: November 3, 201 /s/ John J. I Angelo
John J. ' Angelo
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: November 3, 201 /s/ Rachel P. Cherc
Rachel P. Cherc
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibi

31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officers eequired pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officers aequired pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officels eequired pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officers aequired pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuntr

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doent

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Documh

51



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, John J. D’Angelo, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormraQ €or the period ended September 30, 2014 of kavés$olding Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or dm#tate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdeestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetend procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armuteuatures, as of the end of the period covered lsyrédport based on sL
evaluation; ant

Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrig that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’'s board of directors faersons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contragiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refjmahcial information; ani
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: November 3, 201 /s/ John J. ' Angelo

John J. ' Angelo
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rachel P. Cherco, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on FormraQ €or the period ended September 30, 2014 of kavés$olding Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or dm#tate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, ntgadisg with respect to the per
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all mater
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdeestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdetend procedures |
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}5¢r the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurds tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgrie period in which this report is being prepa

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registgadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtdis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls armuteuatures, as of the end of the period covered lsyrédport based on sL
evaluation; ant

Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbrig that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of registrant’'s board of directors faersons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contragiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refjmahcial information; ani
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifrole in the registramst’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: November 3, 201 /sl Rachel P. Cherc

Rachel P. Cherc
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on FormQ®&f Investar Holding Corporation (the “Companydy the period ended September
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, JohD'Angelo, Chief Executive Officer
the Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secti®Bh0, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

Date: November 3, 201 /s/ John J. ' Angelo
John J. 'Angelo
President and Chief Executive Offic
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report on FormQ®&f Investar Holding Corporation (the “Companydy the period ended September
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cwsion on the date hereof (the “Report))Rachel P. Cherco, Chief Financial Officer of
Company, certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13580adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@rkey Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefkction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; a

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
the Company

Date: November 3, 201 /s/ Rachel P. Cherc
Rachel P. Cherc
Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer




